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Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
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Commission File Number 000-27701
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(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaefr)

Tennesse 62-144355¢E
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Nashville, Tennessee 37203
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(615) 301-3100
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PART |

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwarddimg statements within the meaning of Section @fLihe Securities Exchange Act of
1934. Such forward-looking statements include, agnathers, those statements including the wordséetgy’ “anticipates,” “intends,”
“believes,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “continue” andsimilar language or the negative of such termstioer comparable terminology. Although
we believe that the expectations reflected in tmevérd-looking statements are reasonable, Hea#h8tis actual results may differ
significantly from those projected in the forwambking statements. Factors that might cause oribomé to such differences include, but are
not limited to, those discussed in the section KAactors” in Item 1A of this Annual Report on Fof+K and elsewhere in this document. In
addition, factors that we are not currently awdreanld harm our future operating results. You stlaarefully review the risks described in
other documents HealthStream files from time tcetimith the Securities and Exchange Commission. &felcautioned not to place undue
reliance on forward-looking statements, which spaslly as of the date of this Annual Report on FArK. HealthStream undertakes no
obligation to publicly release any revisions to thevard-looking statements or reflect events ocuinstances after the date of this document.

ltem 1. Business
OVERVIEW AND HISTORY

HealthStream, Inc. (HealthStream or the Compangyiges SaaS-based workforce development solutiodsesearch/patient experience
solutions for healthcare organizations—all desigieegissess and develop the people that delivesrgatare which, in turn, supports the
improvement of business and clinical outcomes. @ankforce development products are used by heatthmayanizations to meet a broad
range of their training, certification, competeragsessment, performance appraisal, and developreeds, while our research/patient
experience products provide our customers infoilmnabout patients’ experiences and how to imprbeent workforce engagement, physician
relations, and community perceptions of their smrsi HealthStream'’s customers include healthcgi@n@rations, pharmaceutical and medical
device companies, and other participants in théthese industry. Our customer base includes apprately 4,000 healthcare organizations
(predominately acute-care facilities) througholb8l states.

At December 31, 2013, HealthStream had approxim&t&l1 million “total subscribers” to its subscigi-based solutions. Each individual
end-user who utilizes at least one HealthStrearasigiion-based solution is counted as one sulmgnibgardless of the number of
subscriptions contracted by or for that end-uséo@ 3.71 million total subscribers, 3.39 milliarere already implemented as of
December 31, 2013 and 316,000 were in the prodésgptementation. Our subscription-based solutimtude any of our platform
applications, plus courseware or content. We debdeicational activities and training coursewarsupcustomers through our platform
application, the HealthStream Learning Center™ (MHhile we deliver competency management and padace appraisal tools through
our platform applications the HealthStream CompatePenter (HCC) and HealthStream Performance CEAC), respectively, all on our
SaaS-based platform. Our research/patient expergrocucts and service offerings include qualityt satisfaction surveys, data analyses of
survey results, patient experience evaluation amgavement, and other research-based measurenoéfdoused on patients, physicians,
employees, and members of the community. Our amearch/patient experience product is the Patisights™ survey, which accounted for
approximately 78 percent of our research/patiepeggnce solutions business, based on revenuegi2oil3.

As we place greater emphasis on offering our custemew and innovative ways of assessing and dgwngldheir workforces, simulation is
becoming a growing part of our product portfolioe\Wave a collaborative arrangement with Laerdalibéd\/S (Laerdal Medical), a leader
healthcare simulation, to provide a suite of pragldier distributing training simulations and sceoardirectly over the Internet and managing
simulation centers worldwide. SimStdrallows simulation customers to sample, license,dowinload scenarios directly to simulators ovel
Internet. SimManager is an application for managimgulation centers that shares the same platfatmour HLC, and was launched in early
2012. We have a long-term relationship with LaeiMatlical and have been a distributor of its Headt€d® product line for the last seven
years. HeartCod™ uses task based manikins that assist healthcaiespionals in studying, training, and testing fdratvis commonly known
as cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) certifiqatio

Headquartered in Nashville, Tennessee, the Comwasyincorporated in 1990 and began providing issSSlaased solutions in 1999 and its
survey and research solutions in 2005. Includirgjtahal offices in Laurel, Maryland, Brentwood, reessee, and Pensacola, Florida,
HealthStream had 598 full-time and 88 part-time leyges as of December 31, 2013. Our business lohgeelfrom an initial focus on
technology-based training to a company providingkfarce development and research/patient experisolegions to the nation’s healthcare
providers.

INDUSTRY BACKGROUND

According to the deputy director of the Nationaldlk Statistics Group at the Centers for Medicare edicaid Services (CMS), spending in
the healthcare industry reached approximately $Rilli®n in 2012, or 17.2% of the U.S. gross dotieeproduct. Hospital care expenditures
accounted for approximately 33.5% of the $2.7%drilindustry. According to the Bureau of Labor t&tics, approximately 17.8 million
professionals are employed in the healthcare segofidine domestic economy, with approximately 4i8iom employed in acuteare hospital
and approximately 3.2 million employed in post-&coére organizations, our primary target market®éw workforce development and
research/patient experience products. As of DeceBthe2013, approximately 3.71 million healthcarefpssionals were subscribers to our
SaaS-based solutions, which include 3.39 millidmssubers already implemented and 316,000 subssribéhe process of implementation.
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All of the 4.8 million hospital-based healthcarefessionals that work in the nation’s approximat&§00 acute-care hospitals are required by
federal mandates and accrediting bodies to compigitang in a number of areas. This training inlds safety training mandated by both the
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OgtAd The Joint Commission (an independent, nepfofit organization that accredits
and certifies healthcare organizations and progiarttee United States), as well as training ongudtinformation confidentiality required
under the Health Insurance Portability and Accohifityg Act (HIPAA).

In hospitals, staffing issues and personnel shesthgve also contributed to the need for facilitgdal workforce development as well as
additional assessment and competency based traFangxample, the American Hospital Associatid®BlA) report “Workforce 2015:
Strategy Trumps Shortage” (January 2010) estinthtgghe shortfall of physicians in 2020 will bepamximately 109,000 and the shortage of
registered nurses in 2025 will be the equivaler2&ff,000 full-time employees. We believe that dffgitraining and education for hospital
personnel is increasingly being utilized as a &@rand recruitment incentive.

Many healthcare professionals use continuing edhrcat keep abreast of the latest developmentsraaet licensing and certification
requirements. Continuing education is requirechimses, emergency medical services personnelrdisgbnder personnel, radiologic
personnel, and physicians. Pharmaceutical and @letiiwice companies must also provide their medinthlstry sales representatives with
training mandated for the healthcare industry aaithing for new products. Such companies also pl@gupport and content for education anc
training of audiences that use their products mtheare organizations.

A large portion of the nation’s hospitals utilizsearch and survey tools to gain insight abouéptsi experiences, to assess workforce
competency and engagement, to determine the sthplgy/sician relations, and to measure the peropptabout the hospitals in the
communities they serve. Industry-wide intereshi@easing in research due in part, to the CAHPS ngGmer Assessment of Healthcare
Providers and Systems) Hospital Survey launche@M$ in partnership with the Agency for Healthcaes®&arch and Quality (AHRQ).
Hospitals must submit data to CMS for certain resgiquality measures—which for inpatients incluttesCAHPS® Hospital Survey—in
order to receive the full market basket increaghedir reimbursement payment rates from CMS. Haspthat fail to submit this survey data
will incur a reduction of two percentage pointghe inpatient market basket update amount foraheviing federal fiscal year. We are
designated as a certified vendor for and offer CAEMospital Survey services.

The healthcare education industry is highly fragténvaries significantly in delivery methodsd(. , online products, live events, written
materials, and manikins for simulatitwased training), and is composed of a wide vaonégntities competing for customers. The sheermel

of healthcare information available to satisfy égouing education needs, rapid advances in medeatldpments, and the time constraints tha
healthcare professionals face make it difficultjtickly and efficiently access the continuing edigcacontent most relevant to an individual's
practice or profession. Historically, healthcarefpssionals have received continuing educationtaiing through offline publications, such
as medical journals or by attending conferencessenuinars. In addition, other healthcare workes@rarmaceutical and medical device
manufacturers’ sales and internal regulatory persbasually fulfill their training from external welors or internal training departments. While
these approaches satisfy the ongoing educatiotraiméhg requirements, they are typically costlg amconvenient. In addition, live courses
often limited in the breadth of offerings and da pmvide a method for tracking training completidime results of these traditional methods,
both from a business and compliance standpoingiffieult to track and measure. While hospitalsl drealth systems occasionally survey theil
patients, physicians, and employees using theiriatemnal resources, the practice is limited sithey do not typically possess the valuable
comparative benchmarking data that is availablmfimdependent survey research vendors.

Finally, the hospital industry continues to openattéer intense pressure to reduce costs as a oésattuctions in government reimbursement
rates and increased focus on cost containmentstensiwith participation of patients in managedeqanograms. In addition, hospitals, as well
as pharmaceutical and medical device companiesino@nto experience rising operating costs, couplgh increased pressure to measure an(
report on the outcomes of the dollars spent onitrgi Our products and services are designed td thege needs by reducing healthcare
organizations’ costs of training while improvingtaing outcomes, enhancing reporting capabilifi@sl, supporting customers’ business
objectives.

HEALTHSTREAM'S SOLUTIONS

HealthStream’s products and services are orgamizedwo segments—HealthStream Workforce Developgrgatutions (formerly referenced
as HealthStream Learning & Talent Management) asaltHStream Research/Patient Experience Solutiorraérly referenced as
HealthStream Research)—that collectively help healte organizations meet their ongoing trainingication, assessment, competency
management, and compliance needs. We provide dutists to a wide range of customers within theltheare industry.

HealthStream Workforce Development Solutio—Within HealthStream Workforce Development Solusipwe bring training, assessment,
talent development, and talent management solutagether with administrative and management tonlsur platform through our HLC,
HCC, and HPC. We also offer a more streamlinediaensf the HLC, HealthStream Express™, along wigakthStream Connect, a content
delivery platform that is designed for the singylarpose of allowing access to our extensive caditenaries. These content libraries allow our
customers to subscribe to a wide array of additiooarseware. Additionally, medical device compargan offer online training support
through our platform’s Inservice Center capabildy their products and sponsor continuing educadioectly to healthcare workers.
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Our workforce development solutions support health@dministrators in configuring training to mthegt specific needs of various groups of
employees, modifying training materials, documeamntiraining completion, and facilitating competerggessments, and performance
appraisals. As of December 31, 2013, we had apmabely 3.71 million total subscribers for our suljgion-based solutions, which include
3.39 million subscribers already implemented ang, 3020 subscribers in the process of implementa@um.subscription-based solutions
include subscriptions to our platform applicatioplsis courseware and content subscriptions. Pritnthe HLC, HCC, and HPC are
subscription based, with fees based on the nunflerscribers, courseware provided, and other facWe offer training, implementation, ¢
account management services to facilitate adogtfiaur subscription-based solutions. Fees for ingiare based on the time and efforts of the
personnel involved. Implementation fees vary basethe size, scope, and complexity of the proj@at. SaaS-based platform and
subscription-based solutions are hosted in a degdta center that allows authorized subscribeerhet access to our services, thereby
eliminating the need for onsite local implementasiof installed workforce development products.

Other Applications on our Platform-In addition to the HLC, we offer an array of otlagaplications on our platform, each serving a ueiqu
function for hospitals and health systems. Eachiegdon on our platform is SaaS-based and haswts value proposition and revenue stream

* The Authoring Center is a platform application thedvides healthcare organizations the capabiityreéate Internet-based courses
by moving their existing course material onlineself-authoring new material and electively shatimegse materials with our other
customers through a courseware exchange. We dkofafthoring Pro, an upgraded product which inelsid licensed image
library, as an additional subscription to this prod Team Author, a collaborative authoring appiara was launched in 2012,
Pricing for these products is subscription baseth fees based on the number of subscribers amd ¢d\penetration of services
within the customer organizatio

e The HealthStream Competency Center™ (HCC) is oaf6S#sed platform application for competency mamage for healthcare
organizations, which provides customers tools &8s competency and appraise performance. Competssessment is a
requirement of hospitals and healthcare organiaatior maintaining accreditation based on requirgm&om The Joint
Commission to evaluate, document, and report paidace competencies. We believe that the HCC dffiersffective means of
determining which competencies are associatedesitih position and evaluating and documenting coznpgtassessmen

e The HealthStream Performance Center™ (HPC) is aaSSased platform application for performance meament for healthcare
organizations, which provides an automated, papeperformance appraisal process. The HPC wasHanmdarch of 2012. We
believe the HPC offers an effective means of sttigémg the performance appraisal process, whickdgdno increase completion
rates and consistency with all aspects of hos| workforce appraisal process:

» SimCenteP —is a suite of applications. We formemkiaborative arrangement, SimVentures, with Lakekéfedical in 2010 to
offer products and services aimed at acceleratiagtobal adoption of simulation-based learnindibglthcare providers with a
focus on improving clinical competencies and pdt@ricomes. The venture offers healthcare organizatand medical and nursi
schools worldwide a range of fully integrated Saaglications that accelerate development and bligtan of simulation content;
enable enterprise-wide management of simulatiotecgnsimulators, and programs; and support assggshthe effectiveness of
simulation training as part of complete curriclBanStore® , one segment of our collaborative arrarege with Laerdal, began
operations in the first quarter of 2011 and ounsation management platform, SimManager, was laeddéh early 2012. SimViev
our debriefing system for simulati-based training, also was launched in early 2

HealthStream Research/Patient Experience Soluti—HealthStream Research/Patient Experience Solutiomplements HealthStream
Workforce Development Solutions product and serefferings by providing hospital-based customerthwiatient Insights™, Employee
Insights™, Physician Insights™, and Community Ihsg™ surveys, data analyses of survey resultsptrat research-based measurement
tools. Our services are designed to provide thdraulyses with insightful recommendations for gefienchmarking capability using our
comprehensive databases; and consulting servigdsritify solutions for our customers based onrteeivey results. Clients are able to acces
and analyze their survey results data through hisi@nline™, our secure web-based reporting plaf@ur survey and research solutions
focus on providing statistically valid data to assiur customers with their decision making reldatetheir organization’s performance
improvement objectives. In addition to collectingdaeporting data, we provide analysis and comgylidb help customers understand and
improve their survey results and patient experisrael the underlying impact on their business With this insight that healthcare
organizations are able to develop plans for entthpegformance that can be delivered through ounieg solutions. Pricing for these services
is based on the survey type, delivery method, gizbe survey instrument, sample size, frequencuofey cycles, and other factors.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

We acquired Decision Critical, Inc. (DCI) in Jun@l2, Sy.Med Development, Inc. (Sy.Med) in Octob@t2, and substantially all of the asset:
of Baptist Leadership Group (BLG) in September 208 additional information regarding these acitjoiss, please see Note 5 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Item 7, “Nangent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Ctiadiand Results of Operations”
included elsewhere in this report.
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CUSTOMERS

We provide our solutions to customers across adbraage of entities within the healthcare indugtrgluding healthcare organizations
(including government entities) and pharmaceutiral medical device companies. We derive a subatgition of our revenues from a
relatively small number of customers, although ingle customer represented more than 10 percamirafevenues during 2013, 2012, or
2011. Examples of customers that have purchasedntracted for products and services from Healde®irinclude: HCA, Inc., Tenet
Healthcare Corporation, Catholic Health Initiativ€@mmunity Health Systems, Inc., Lifepoint Hoslsitdnc., and Ardent Health Services,
LLC.

SALES AND MARKETING

We market our products and services primarily thfoaur direct sales teams, our consultants, and@rount relationship managers, who are
based at our corporate headquarters in Nashvidlen@ssee and in our additional offices locatedauré&l, Maryland, Brentwood, Tennessee,
and Pensacola, Florida as well as remote homeeddfites locations. As of December 31, 2013, outthigeam Workforce Development
Solutions sales and relationship management peesoeonsisted of 93 employees—of which 86 carriddssquotas—and our HealthStream
Research/Patient Experience Solutions sales aatioredhip management personnel consisted of 27amps—of which 15 carried sales
guotas. Our geographically dispersed field salgamration is divided into teams focused on selingworkforce development products and «
separate sales team focused on selling our resaacchatient experience improvement products.

We conduct a variety of marketing programs to prmmur products and services, including productlogs, user groups—including our
annual customer Summit, trade shows, internet ptiomand demonstrations, telemarketing campaiguisligrelations, distribution of
product-specific literature, direct mail, and adiging.

Over most of the last twelve years, we have hostednnual conference in Nashville for our custorkamwvn as the “Summit.” We have
utilized this client conference to reach out toséirg and potential customers and business partpergide training and educational services,
and to demonstrate our new and existing produetioijs. We have marketing teams that are respenfibthese initiatives and for working
with and supporting our product management and salams. At December 31, 2013, our marketing peedaonsisted of 19 employees.

OPERATIONS

We believe our ability to establish and maintaimgdgerm customer relationships, adoption of oudpots and services, recurring sales, and
development and maintenance of new and existindyats are dependent on the strength of our opestaustomer service, product
development and maintenance, training, and othgyatiteams. As of December 31, 2013, these peesaonsisted of approximately 192
employees for our Workforce Development Solutioegnsent and approximately 302 employees for our &ekéatient Experience Solutions
segment, of which 175 employees worked in our ui¢ering center. Our Workforce Development Solutiopgrations team consists of
personnel associated with customer support, impigtien services, product development and maintaraining, and project management.
Our Research/Patient Experience Solutions opeati&am consists of personnel associated with pmbeeiewing, distributing and
processing papdrased survey instruments, patient experience coegamd consulting, data analysis and reportingiofey results, and proje
management.

TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT

Our services are designed to be reliable, secatesealable. Our software is a combination of getpry and commercially available software
and operating systems. Our software supports lgpatid management of content, publication of our sreds, execution of courseware,
registration and tracking of users, collection, pling, and analysis of survey data, and reportingformation for both internal and external

hardware and a combination of commercially avadabid proprietary software components.

Our software applications, servers, and netwonasifucture that deliver the majority of our seeg@re hosted by third-party data center
providers. Our primary data center is located t&rafour rated hosting facility in Chicago, lllir and our disaster recovery data center is
hosted by a separate provider located in Frankémnessee. Both of our providers maintain our eqaift in secure, limited access
environments, supported by redundant power, enmistal conditioning, and network connectivity. Quoviders’ hosting centers are
connected to the Internet through multiple, redmbdaigh-speediber optic circuits. The transactional systemspsuping the data collection {
our survey products are located in secure, limitezkss environments located at our Nashville, Tesaeeand Laurel, Maryland offices and
feed our core business intelligence platforms sdpmpour survey products located at our primargthmy facility in Chicago. Company
personnel monitor all servers, networks, and systema continuous basis. Together with our progidee employ several levels of enterprise
firewall systems and data abstraction to protectdatiabases, customer information, and coursewasry from unauthorized access. All of
our production data located in our Chicago datderds backed up in real time to our disaster recpwdata center located in Franklin,
Tennessee. Monthly snap-shots of our data aredstdfasite with a third-party data storage provider

4



Table of Contents

COMPETITION

In addition to the competing healthcare educatielivdry methods in the industry, we also have dioeenpetitors. In the workforce
development business, a number of companies affapetitive learning management products and tatemagement modules to the
healthcare industry. We compete with companies agdBiornerstone OnDemand, Healthcare Source, Q&&RA, SAP, and SumTotal
Systems that provide their services to multiplaisides, including healthcare. During 2012, SAP @ndcle gained greater presence in the
healthcare market by way of acquisitions; SAP aeguSuccessFactors and Oracle acquired TALEO. ¥ecaimpete with large medical
publishers that have operating units that offemizay management systems that focus on healthsach,as Reed Elsevier Group’s MC
Strategies. In the healthcare research businessegveompetition from large nationally recognizesearch firms such as Avatar International,
Gallup, National Research Corporation, Press Gassyciates, Studer Group, Professional Researchultants, Inc., and others. Our
research business also experiences direct congpefiitm vendors who provide research servicestierdhdustries including Kenexa, whick
now owned by IBM, and Foresight, which is now owlsgdTNS Global. Finally, in our simulation busingg® compete with B-Line Medical,
CAE/Meti, and EMS.

We believe our workforce development solutions,clihinclude both products and services that fatdéliteaining, assessment and developmen
for healthcare professionals, a wide assortmenbofseware, a mechanism for measuring satisfaatidfor other results, and the ability to
provide all our services on a single platform ober Internet, provide us with a competitive advgatdn our research business, we believe ou
large proprietary database of survey results, w@dgy infrastructure designed to automate the siog of survey results, proprietary core
survey instruments and action plan development odgetlogy, and our ability to quickly deliver relewamline courseware targeted at
addressing survey related findings provide us wittompetitive advantage. In our simulation business SimCentefM products enable
simulation centers to purchase courseware onlim@age students and resources, and provide a degrozfpability in an integrated manner.
Built on our SaaS-based platform and with our dalative arrangement with Laerdal Medical, a wéellder in simulation equipment, we
believe we have a competitive advantage in thia.aMe believe that the principal competitive fastaffecting the marketing of our workforce
development and research solutions to the heaéhodustry include:

» features of our SaaS-based platform and applicgtianluding reporting, management functionalityility to manage a variety of
events or modalities, courseware assignment, clurit management, documenting competency assessarghfgerformance
appraisals, scalability, and the ability to tra¢kization and results

» scope and variety of Internet-based learning covase available, including mandated content for OSHie Joint Commission,
patient safety, and HIPAA requirements, ICD-10rtirag, competency-based content, courseware scarthabdrive simulators,
courseware that provides CPR certification, as aglhe ability of our customers to create and thest own
wek-enableccourseware

» our singular focus on the healthcare industry anmddeep healthcare experti:

» scope and quality of professional services offeireduding survey execution, implementation, benahting, training and the
expertise and technical knowledge of the custo’ employees

» competitive pricing, which supports a return onestiment to customers when compared to other atteendelivery methods
e customer service and suppc

» effectiveness of sales and marketing efforts;

* company reputatior

Collectively, we believe these capabilities provicewith the ability to improve the quality of hiredare by assessing and developing the pr
who deliver care.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION OF THE INTERNET AND THE HEALT HCARE INDUSTRY
Regulation of the Internet and the Privacy and Seaity of Personal Information

The laws and regulations that govern our businkaage rapidly. For example, the United States gowent and the governments of some
states and foreign countries have attempted tdatgactivities on the Internet. The following amme of the evolving areas of law that are
relevant to our business:

» Privacy and Security LawCurrent and proposed federal, state and foreigrapyiand security regulations and other laws
restricting the collection, use, security and disare of personal information could limit our afyilio collect information or use and
disclose the information in our databases or ddrfvem other sources to generate revenues. It raaobtly to implement security
or other measures designed to comply with any eegpelation. For example, the American RecoveryRathvestment Act of 2009
(ARRA) expanded the application of certain HIPAAvacy and security requirements to apply direatlyi$ as a business associate
of our customers. On January 25, 2013, the UnitateS Department of Health and Human Services (Hst8ed implementing
regulations, and compliance was generally requieginning September 23, 20:

« Content RegulatiorBoth foreign and domestic governments have adogmtedoroposed laws governing the content of material
transmitted over the Internet. These include laalating to obscenity, indecency, libel and defaoratiWe could be liable if conte
delivered by us violates these regulatic
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* Information Security Accountability RegulatitAs a business associate of our customers, we quéred to report certain breaches
of protected health information to our customersiclv must in turn notify affected individuals, HH&d, in certain situations
involving large breaches, the media. The 2013 Hétftilations created a presumption that all non-geechuses or disclosures of
unsecured, protected health information are breaghkess the covered entity or business assoatablishes that there is a low
probability the information has been compromisedaddition, we are subject to certain state lawas blate to privacy or the
reporting of security breaches. For example, Calitolaw requires notification of security breacimeslving personal information
and medical information. We may incur costs to clymyth these security requirements. Because mdutlyese laws are new and
there is little guidance related to many of theses|, it is difficult to estimate the cost of oungaliance with these laws. Further,
Congress has considered bills that would requirepamies to engage independent third parties td thalcompanies’ computer
information security. If the Company is requiredéport a breach of security or if one of the Conym customers is required to
report a breach of security by the Company, the @om's business could be negatively impac

» Sales and Use TaXhrough December 31, 2013, we collected salespusther taxes on taxable transactions in stateginoh we
have employees or have a significant level of satdigity. While HealthStream expects that thisrapgh is appropriate, other
states or foreign jurisdictions may seek to imp@secollection obligations on companies like ug #r@gage in online commerce. If
they do, these obligations could limit the growflelectronic commerce in general and limit our iptio profit from the sale of our
services over the Interne

Laws and regulations directly applicable to contegulation, e-commerce, Internet communicationd,the privacy and security of personal
information are becoming more prevalent. Congressicues considering laws regarding Internet taxatlrhe dynamic nature of this
regulatory environment increases the uncertairggnding the marketplace impact of such regulafidre enactment of any additional laws or
regulations may increase our cost of conductingniess or otherwise harm our business, financiatlitimm and operating results.

Regulation of Education, Training and Other Service for Healthcare Professionals

Occupational Safety and Health Administration (O$HRSHA regulations require employers to provide frairto employees to minimize the
risk of injury from various potential workplace lzads. Employers in the healthcare industry areirequo provide training with respect to
various topics, including blood borne pathogensosype control, laboratory safety and tuberculasisdtion control. OSHA regulations requ
employers to keep records of their employees’ cetignt of training with respect to these workplaegdrds.

The Joint Commissioif.he Joint Commission mandates that employers itéadthcare industry provide certain workplace tyad@d patient
interaction training to employees. Training reqdiby The Joint Commission may include programsnéeciion control, patient bill of rights,
radiation safety, and incident reporting. Healtkoarganizations are required to provide and doctitngiming on these topics to receive
accreditation from The Joint Commission. In additidhe Joint Commission imposes continuing edunagguirements on physicians that
relate to each physician’s specific staff appointtae

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability AetIPAA).HIPAA regulations require certain organizationg|iling most healthcare
providers and health plans, to adopt safeguardsdawy the use and disclosure of health-relatentin&tion. HIPAA regulations also require
these organizations to provide reasonable and pppte safeguards to protect the privacy, integaitg confidentiality of individually
identifiable healthcare information. These healtbaaganizations are required to establish, mairgad provide training with regard to their
policies and procedures for protecting the intggaiid confidentiality of individually identifiableealthcare information. Healthcare
organizations are required to document traininghese topics to support their compliance. ARRA exieal the application of certain HIPAA
privacy and security requirements to apply diretlgompanies (known as business associates)nhdtp services to certain healthcare
organizations, and revised the requirements fageagents with business associates. Under the remsddhat implement these ARRA
requirements, business associates and their subctors may be directly subject to criminal andla@anctions for violations of HIPAA
privacy security standards.

The American Nurses Credentialing Center (ANGM®)CC, a subsidiary of the American Nurses AssocrafANA), provides individuals and
organizations throughout the nursing professioin wite resources they need to achieve practicelercel ANCC's internationally renowned
credentialing programs certify nurses in specipifctice areas; recognize healthcare organizatamrromoting safe, positive work
environments through the Magnet Recognition Programd the Pathway to Excellene®rogram; and accredit providers of continuing mg
education. In addition, ANCC'’s Institute for Crediafing Innovatior® offers an array of informatioraald educational services and products t
support its core credentialing programs. ANCC €ediion exams validate nurses’ skills, knowledagmeq abilities. More than a quarter million
nurses have been certified by ANCC since 1990. Muaia 80,000 advanced practice nurses are curregtiified by ANCC. The ANCC
Magnet Recognition Prografn recognizes healthcayanizations that provide the very best in nursiage @nd professionalism in nursing
practice. The program also provides a vehicle fese@minating best practices and strategies amorsingusystems. The ANCC Magnet
Recognition Program is the gold standard for ngrgixcellence. The Pathway to Excellefice Prograwgrazes the essential elements of an
optimal nursing practice environment. The desigmai$ earned by healthcare organizations thatematk environments where nurses can
flourish. The award substantiates the professisatisfaction of nurses and identifies best placegark.
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Continuing Nursing Education (CNEJtate nurse practice laws are usually the sourestbiority for establishing the state board of mgs
requirements. The state board of nursing estalslidieestate’s CNE requirements for professionadesirCNE credits are provided through
accredited providers that have been approved bARE@C Commission on Accreditation and/or the stadard of nursing. CNE requirements
vary widely from state to state. Thirty-four statequire registered nurses to certify that theyehascumulated a minimum number of CNE
credits in order to maintain their licenses. In satates, the CNE requirement only applies tocenbure of advance practice nurses, or
additional CNEs may be required of this categorpurses. Required CNE ranges from 12 to 45 creditsially, with reporting generally on a
bi-annual basis. Board certifications (e.g., CNO&e+tification of perioperative nursing) also reguCNE credits, with certain percentages
required in specific categories based on the @eatibn type. We are an accredited provider of GiyEhe ANCC.

Continuing Medical Education (CME$tate licensing boards, professional organizatésmsemployers require physicians to certify thayth
have accumulated a minimum number of continuingioa@ducation hours to maintain their licenses&sally, each state’s medical practice
laws authorize the state’s board of medicine tatdésth and track CME requirements. Forty-eightestaédical licensing boards currently have
CME requirements, as well as Puerto Rico, Guamtlaadl.S. Virgin Islands. The number of CME howeguired by each state ranges fron
to 50 hours per year. Other sources of CME requérgmare state medical societies and practiceapebbards. The failure to obtain the
requisite amount and type of CME could result in-nenewal of the physiciaslicense to practice medicine and/or membershgriredical o
practice specialty society. American Medical Asation (AMA) classifies continuing medical educatixctivities as either Category 1, which
includes formal CME activities, or Category 2, whiacludes most informal activities. Sponsors caly designate CME activities f&xMA

PRA Category 1 Credit™. Most agencies nationwide that require CME paréiion speciffAMA PRA Category 1 Credit™Only institutions
and organizations accredited to provide CME caigdese an activity foAMA PRA Category 1 Credit™The Accreditation Council for
Continuing Medical Education (ACCME) is responsifile awarding accreditation status to state medioaleties, medical schools, and other
institutions and organizations that provide CMEwaii¢s for a national audience of physicians. Oinlstitutions and organizations are
accredited. State medical societies, operating uth@eaegis of the ACCME, accredit institutions anganizations that provide CME activities
primarily for physicians within the state or boritkey states. We are an accredited provider of CMEhbyACCME.

Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMSMS has articulated a vision for health care qualithe right care for every person every
time. To achieve this vision, CMS is committed to cat is safe, effective, timely, patient-centerfficient, and equitable. Value-based
purchasing (VBP), which links payment more dire¢tijthe quality of care provided, is a strategyt & help to transform the current payn
system by rewarding providers for delivering higlality, efficient clinical care. Through a numbédmpablic reporting programs, demonstrat
projects, pilot programs, and voluntary efforts, Eklas launched VBP initiatives in hospitals, phgsioffices, nursing homes, home health
services, and dialysis facilities. Further, purguarthe Patient Protection and Affordable Care, Astamended by the Healthcare and Educ
Reconciliation Act of 2010 (collectively, ACA), CMS implementing a number of initiatives designedirtk payments to quality and
efficiency, including a VBP program for inpatierddpital services.

Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers ardr8ggCAHPS)CMS has partnered with AHRQ to develop a standaddgurvey
instrument and data collection methodology for mmeag patients’ perspectives on hospital care. ifitent of the survey is to produce
comparable data on the patients’ perspectiveddw alonsumer-based comparisons between hospitas,iacentives to drive hospitals to
improve their quality of care, and increase thagparency of hospital reporting. Hospitals musthsitidata for certain required quality
measures—which for inpatients includes the CAMPS spital Survey—in order to receive the full markatsket increase to their
reimbursement payment rates from CMS. While hokpédicipation is voluntary, hospitals that fail submit this survey data will incur a
reduction of two percentage points in the inpatmaatket basket update amount for the following faliiscal year. We have received certified
vendor designation and will continue to offer CAHPSospital Survey services. In addition, we are difted vendor approved to offer
CAHPS® Home Health Care Survey used to measurexgieziences of people receiving home health cama ftedicare-certified home health
agencies. We also offer CAHPS Clinician and Group/8y used to measure patient experiences withitheate providers and staff in
doctor’s offices.

Medicare and Medicaid Electronic Health Records fHncentive Program:The Medicare and Medicaid EHR Incentive Progranavipe
incentive payments to eligible professionals, elgghospitals and critical access hospitals (CA&sshhey adopt, implement, upgrade or
demonstrate meaningful use of certified EHR tecbgyl By putting into action and meaningfully usiug EHR system, providers will reap
benefits beyond financial incentives—such as réduéh errors, availability of records and datanneders and alerts, clinical decision support,
and e-prescribing/refill automation.

Allied Disciplines Various allied health professionals are requireditain continuing education to maintain their tises. For example,
emergency medical services personnel may be rebtaracquire up to 20 continuing education hoursypar, all or a portion of which can be
fulfilled online. These requirements vary by staibel depend on the classification of the employee.

Other Continuing EducatioWe are also an accredited provider of continuingcation and continuing pharmacy education by theo8isition
of Surgical Technologists, Inc. (AST) and the Aclitation Council for Pharmacy Education (ACPE) pexgtively.
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Regulation of Educational Program Sponsorship and @port

There are a variety of laws and regulations thigicathe relationships between our medical devimkgharmaceutical customers and the user:
of our products and services, including the spatdgprand support of educational programs. For ekanime Physician Payment Sunshine
(“Sunshine Act”) requires manufacturers of drugeldgical devices and medical devices covered bylikse, Medicaid, or the Children’s
Health Insurance Program to report annually to Gid$ments and other transfers of value, includingcational programs, given by such
manufacturers to physicians and teaching hospitédl, limited exceptions. CMS has issued a find implementing the Sunshine Act.
Manufacturers are required to report the physisiaame, business address and national provideifideas well as other information
including the value, date, form and nature of whatffered. Manufacturers subject to the rule weriired to begin collecting information
beginning August 1, 2013, with the first reportihgadline set for March 31, 2014. CMS will releds® 2013 reported data on a public website
by September 30, 2014. Manufacturers that do net the reporting obligations will be subject torsfgcant monetary penalties.

Further, the Office of Inspector General (OIG) lsssied Compliance Program Guidance for PharmaaéMianufacturers and for the Durable
Medical Equipment, Prosthetics, Orthotics, and Supmustry (collectively, the Guidelines). The @alines address compliance risks raised
by the support of continuing educational activitigspharmaceutical and medical device companies.@lidelines have affected and may
continue to affect the type and extent of comméagtigport we receive for our continuing educatiotivéties. The trade associations for the
pharmaceutical and medical device industries (PhRivi& AdvaMed, respectively) have also promulgatedt bwn codes of ethics that furtt
restrict the interactions between industry andthezdre professionals. In addition, the AMA hasibshed its own code of ethics regarding
Gifts to Physicians from Industry to provide stami$aof conduct for the medical profession. The Canypfollows the rules and guidelines
provided by ACCME, ANCC, and other continuing edi@maaccrediting bodies to ensure that its contigiéducation programming is free
from commercial bias and consistent with the Gures.

The U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) and theFederal Trade Commission (FTC)

Current FDA and FTC rules and enforcement actiosragulatory policies or those that the FDA ori&C may develop in the future could
have a material adverse effect on our ability mvjate existing or future applications or service®tr end users or obtain the necessary
corporate sponsorship to do so. The FDA and the f€fGlate the form, content and dissemination loéliag, advertising and promotional
materials, including direct-to-consumer prescriptityug and medical device advertising, prepareabigr, pharmaceutical, biotechnology or
medical device companies. The FTC regulates owectlunter drug advertising and, in some cases,qakdivice advertising. Generally,
regulated companies must limit their advertising promotional materials to discussions of the Flpf+aved claims and, in limited
circumstances, to a limited number of claims nqiraped by the FDA. Therefore, any information thaimotes the use of pharmaceutical or
medical device products that is presented withseavices is subject to the full array of the FDAI &TC requirements and enforcement
actions. We believe that banner advertisementsisgpship links and any educational programs thekt iladependent editorial control that we
may present with our services could be subjectié Br FTC regulation. While the FDA and the FTCqaahe principal burden of complian
with advertising and promotional regulations on dldeertiser, if the FDA or FTC finds that any regel information presented with our
services violates FDA or FTC regulations, they ke regulatory action against us or the advertssponsor of that information. In
addition, the FDA may adopt new regulatory polidiegt more tightly regulate the format and contdrgromotional information on the
Internet.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND OTHER PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

To protect our proprietary rights, we rely gengralh copyright, trademark and trade secret lawsfidentiality agreements and procedures
with employees, consultants and other third partieetractual provisions in license agreements waathsultants, vendors and customers; and
use measures designed to control access to owaseftdocumentation and other proprietary infororatiWe own federal trademark and
service mark registrations for several marks, idiclg without limitation “EXCELLENCE THROUGH INSIGHT“HEALTHSTREAM”,
“HOSPITAL DIRECT", “OR PROTOCOL", “PATIENT INSIGHTS “PHYSICIAN INSIGHTS", “INSIGHTS ONLINE", “INSIGHT INTO
ACTION", “QUALITY CHECK”, “SIMCENTER”", “SIMMANAGER" , and “SIMSTORE.” We also have obtained registrabdthe
“HEALTHSTREAM” mark in certain other countries. Aligations for several trademarks are currently jregpdHowever, there can be no
assurance that we will be successful in obtaingggstration of other trademarks for which we happlied.

The courseware that we license to our customets\isloped through a combination of license agre¢sneith publishers and authors,
assignments and work-for-hire arrangements with tharties, and development by employees. We requiblishers, authors and other third
parties to represent and warrant that their cordeas not infringe on or misappropriate any thiadty intellectual property rights and that they
have the right to provide their content and hav&iokd all third-party consents necessary to d@smw.publishers, authors and other third
parties also agree to indemnify us against celi@ility we might sustain due to the content thpegvide.

If a third party asserts a claim that we have ingfed its patents or other intellectual propertitigve may be required to redesign our products
or enter into royalty or licensing agreements.ddifion, we license technologies from third parfi@sincorporation into our services. Royalty
and licensing agreements with these third partiag not be available on terms acceptable to us,afiaAdditionally, despite the steps we have
taken to protect our intellectual property and pietpry rights, our efforts may not be adequaterdrparties may infringe or misappropriate
intellectual property, and such violations of auteilectual property are difficult to detect andip®. Competitors may also independently
develop technologies that are substantially eqentabr superior to the technologies we employ inpyaducts or services. If we fail to protect
our proprietary rights adequately, our competitarsld offer similar services, potentially signifidy harming our competitive position and
decreasing our revenues.
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Company files reports with the SEC, includingal reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports om#&0-Q and other reports from time to
time. The public may read and copy any materialilevith the SEC at the SEC’s Public ReferenceRat 100 F Street, NE, Washington,
DC 20549. The public may obtain information on diperation of the Public Reference Room by calllmg $EC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The
Company is an electronic filer and the SEC mairstaim Internet site at http://www.sec.gov that cimistéhe reports, proxy and information
statements, and other information filed electrolbjc®ur website address is www.healthstream.coead® note that our website address is
provided as an inactive textual reference only.iéke available free of charge through our webgite annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form &iid all amendments to those reports as soon amadayg practicable after such material is
electronically filed with or furnished to the SEThe information provided on our website is not prthis report, and is therefore not
incorporated by reference unless such informasartherwise specifically referenced elsewhere imréport.

OUR EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2013, we employed 598 full-teme 88 part-time persons, of which 175 persongmgoyed in our interviewing center.
Our success will depend in large part upon ouiitghid attract and retain qualified employees. \Weef competition in this regard from other
companies, but we believe that we maintain goaatioris with our employees. We are not subject focatiective bargaining agreements.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following is a brief summary of the businesparience of each of the executive officers of tlen@any. Officers of the Company are
elected by the Board of Directors and serve apthasure of the Board of Directors. The followiable sets forth certain information regarc
the executive officers of the Company:

Name Age  Position

Robert A. Frist, Jr 46  Chief Executive Officer, President and ChairmathefBoard of Director
Jeffrey S. Doste 49  Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Offi

Gerard M. Hayden, J 59 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Arthur E. Newmar 65 Executive Vice Presidel

J. Edward Pearsc 51 Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Off

Michael Sousi 45  Senior Vice Presidel

Robert A. Frist, Jr., one of our co-founders, rawad as our chief executive officer and chairmiathe board of directors since 1990 and
president since 2001. Mr. Frist is the companyigfobperating decision maker. He graduated withaar&lor of Science in business with
concentrations in finance, economics and markdtimm Trinity University.

Jeffrey S. Doster joined the Company in May 2008easor vice president and chief technology offit¢ée earned undergraduate degrees in
both Economics and Business Administration from $owUniversity, as well as a Master of Business idstration from Loyola College, in
Maryland.

Gerard M. Hayden, Jr. joined the Company as sefierpresident and chief financial officer in Ma@®(B. He earned a Bachelor of Arts from
the University of Notre Dame and a Master of Sogefiom Northeastern University.

Arthur E. Newman joined the Company in January 2@®@ is currently our Executive Vice PresideneviRrusly he served as our chief
financial officer and senior vice president fronmdary 2000 to March 2006. He holds a Bachelor ¢dr&® in chemistry from the University
Miami and a Master of Business Administration frRatgers University.

J. Edward Pearson joined the Company in June 2086rior vice president, responsible for our suargyresearch business and was named
president of HealthStream Research™ during 200 7Cdmef Operating Officer in 2011. He earned a Bémhef Business Administration in
accounting from Middle Tennessee State University.

Michael Sousa joined the company in October 200d,veas promoted to senior vice president in Jan2@iy). He previously served as vice
president for the Company, with responsibilitiesdar strategic accounts program. He earned a BacbeScience degree from Boston
College and a Master of Business Administratiomfi®oston University.
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ltem 1A. Risk Factors

We believe that the risks and uncertainties desdrlizlow and elsewhere in this document are timeipal material risks facing the Company
as of the date of this report. In the future, weyidecome subject to additional risks that are notently known to us. Our business, financial
condition or results of operations could be maligredversely affected by any of the following ris&nd by any unknown risks. The trading
price of our common stock could decline due to afthe following risks or any unknown risks.

Risks Related to Our Business Model

We may be unable to effectively execute our grostifategy which could have an adverse effect on business and competitive position in
the industry.

Our business strategy includes increasing our niat@e and presence through sales to new custoadelifonal sales to existing customers,
introductions of new products and services, anchtaaiing strong relationships with our existing tousers. Some of the risks that we may
encounter in executing our growth strategy include:

» expenses, delays and difficulties of identifyingl aleveloping new products or services and integgatuch new products or
services into our existing organizatic

» inability to leverage our operational and finan@gstems sufficiently to support our grow

« inability to generate sufficient revenue from nemwdqucts to offset investment cos

« inability to effectively identify, manage and exjplexisting and emerging market opportuniti

« inability to maintain our existing customer relatships;

e increased competition from new and existing contes]

* lengthy sales cycles, or customers delaying pumcfaecisions due to economic conditio

* reduced spending within the training, informatiom &ducation departments of hospitals within orgeamarket; an

» failure of the market for training, information aaducation in the healthcare industry to grow sufficient size or at a sufficient
rate.

If any of these risks are realized, our businesd,aur competitive position in the industry, cosldfer.

We may be unable to effectively identify, completéntegrate the operations of future acquisitiongint ventures, collaborative
arrangements or other growth investments.

As part of our growth strategy, we actively revipossible acquisitions, joint ventures, collabomativrangements or growth investments that
complement or enhance our business. We may ndtlbdaidentify, complete or integrate the opemagiof future acquisitions, joint ventures,
collaborative arrangements or other growth investsidn addition, if we finance acquisitions, jougntures, collaborative arrangements or
other growth initiatives by issuing equity secwedti our existing shareholders may be diluted wbakd affect the market price of our stock.
As a result, if we fail to properly evaluate anédexte acquisitions and investments, our businesppcts may be seriously harmed. Some of
the risks that we may encounter in implementingamquisition, joint venture, collaborative arrangamor growth investment strategies
include:

* expenses, delays or difficulties in identifying antkgrating acquired companies or joint venturerapions, collaborative
arrangements or other growth investments into ogartization;

* inability to retain personnel associated with asiiains, joint ventures, collaborative arrangemenmtsther growth investment

« diversion of management’s attention from otheiatites and/or day-to-day operations to effectivestgcute our growth strategy;
and

« inability to generate sufficient revenue, profindacash flow from acquisitions, joint ventures,la@bbrative arrangements or
other growth investments to offset our investmersts.
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Our ability to accurately forecast revenue for caim products and services may be hindered by custoatheduling.

As revenues from our subscription business contioulcrease, a larger portion of our revenues lvélpredictable; however, quarterly
performance may be more subject to fluctuations. lralthStream Research/Patient Experience Sokiporducts and services are typically
contracted by healthcare organizations for muléirglerms, but the frequency, sample size, and grafrsurvey cycles can vary from quarter to
quarter and year to year. The contract structuredme Research/Patient Experience Solutions ptedjres customers latitude about when tc
initiate a survey, which can affect quarterly onaal revenue forecasts. Also, other projeased products, such as certain content develog
and professional services, are subject to the mests involvement in the provision of the productservice. The timing and magnitude of
these project-based product and service contraaysviary widely from quarter to quarter and yeaydar, and thus may affect our ability to
accurately forecast quarterly and annual finanméaformance.

Our ability to accurately forecast revenue may biéeated by lengthy and widely varying sales cycles.

The period from our initial contact with a potehttastomer and their first purchase of our solutiggically ranges from three to nine months,
and in some cases has extended much further. Tilge ia the sales cycle can be impacted by multgg#ors, including an increasing trend
towards more formal request for proposal proceasdamnore competition within our industry, as walifarmal budget timelines which impact
timing of purchases by target customers. New prsdignd to have a longer and more unpredictablengs ramp period. As a result of these
factors, we have only limited ability to forecdséttiming and type of initial sales. This, in tummakes it more difficult to forecast quarterly and
annual financial performance.

We may not be able to maintain our competitive pinsi against current and potential competitors, espally those with significantly greate
financial, technical, marketing, or other resource

Several of our competitors and many potential cditgye have longer operating histories and sigaiiity greater financial, technical,
marketing, or other resources than we do. We erteodirect competition from both large and smakaming companies and other companie
focused on workforce development management iméa¢thcare industry. We also face competition ftarger survey and research
companies. Given the profile and growth of the thealre industry and the growing need for educatiaming, simulation, research, and
information, it is likely that additional competitowill emerge. We believe we maintain a competithidvantage against our competitors by
offering a comprehensive array of products andisesy however, our lack of market diversificati@sulting from our concentration on the
healthcare industry may make us susceptible tadasiarket share to our competitors who also offesraplete e-learning solution to a cross-
section of industries. These companies may betallespond more quickly than we can to new or chmngpportunities, technologies,
standards or customer requirements. Further, ni@girccustomer agreements are for terms ranging fsne to four or five years, with no
obligation to renew. The short terms of these ageze#s may enable customers to more easily shifhéoof our competitors.

The failure to maintain and strengthen our relatiahips with strategic partners or significant changén the terms of the agreements we
have with them may have an adverse impact on ouitigtto successfully market our products and seses.

We have entered into contracts with strategic gastrincluding content, technology, and retail et@vendors. Our ability to increase the s

of our products and services depends in part upaintaining and strengthening relationships withstheurrent and future strategic partners.
Most of these contracts are on a rextiusive basis. Certain strategic partners magr giffoducts and services from multiple distinct pamies
including, in some instances, products or serwdgish may compete with our products and servicesredver, under contracts with some of
our strategic partners, we may be bound by prawssthat restrict our ability to market and sell puwducts and services to certain potential
customers. The success of these contractual arreerde will depend in part upon the strategic pastr@vn competitive, marketing, and
strategic considerations, including the relativeaadages for such strategic partners in usingredtare products being developed and markete
by them or our competitors, rather than our proslacid services.

We cannot guarantee that we will be able to mairaaid strengthen our relationships with strategitners, that we will be successful in
effectively integrating such partners’ products #exhnology into our own, or that such relationshipll be successful in generating additional
revenue. If any of these strategic partners hagathe experiences with our products and servimeseek to amend the financial or other te
of the contracts we have with them, we may neaédd@ase our organizational focus on the type®nfises and solutions they sell and alter
our development, integration, and/or distributitnategies, which may divert our planned efforts esgburces from other projects.

Lastly, we could be subject to claims and liabjlag a result of the activities, products, or sEwiof these strategic partners, and/or our acts «
omissions with regard to these strategic partri&rsn if these claims do not result in liabilityus, investigating and defending these claims
could be expensive, time-consuming and result épsasion of or interference with certain offering®ur clients and/or adverse publicity that
could harm our business.
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We may not be able to retain proper distributiomghits from our content partners, and this could affieprojected growth in courseware
subscription revenue

Most of our agreements with content providers ararfitial terms of two to three years. The congeattners may choose not to renew their
agreements with us or may terminate the agreeneantgif we do not fulfill our contractual obligatis. If a significant number of our content
providers terminate or fail to renew their agreetaavith us on acceptable terms, it could resu#t nreduction in the number of courses we are
able to distribute, causing decreased revenuest dasir agreements with our content partners areaxclusive, and our competitors offer, or
could offer, training and continuing education @mitthat is similar to or the same as ours. If jghielrs and authors, including our current
content partners, offer information to users or@mpetitors on more favorable terms than thoseredf to us, or increase our license fees, ou
competitive position and our profit margins andgpects could be harmed. In addition, the failur@twycontent partners to deliver high-
quality content and to revise their content in cese to user demand and evolving healthcare adsamzktrends could result in customer
dissatisfaction and inhibit our ability to attraetd retain subscribers of our courseware offerings.

We may not be able to develop new products andisesy or enhancements to our existing products asdvices, or be able to achieve
widespread acceptance of new products, serviceeatures, or keep pace with technological developise

Our growth strategy depends in part on our abititgenerate revenue growth through sales to netermass as well as increasing sales of
additional courseware subscriptions and other prisdand services to existing customers. Our ideatibn of additional features, content,
products and services may not result in timely tgmaent of complementary products. In addition,gbecess of certain new products and
services may be dependent on continued growthrithase of SaaS-based customers and we are ndabaaeurately predict the volume or
speed with which existing and new customers wildsuch new products and services. Because hasdttraining continues to change and
evolve, we may be unable to accurately predictdmatlop new products, features, content and ottoelugts to address the needs of the
healthcare industry. Further, the new productyises and enhancements we develop may introduodisant defects into or otherwise
negatively impact our core software platform. Wihilenew products and services are subject tontgsthd quality control, all software and
software-based services are subject to errors atidimetions. If we release new products, service@a enhancements with bugs, defects or
errors or that cause bugs, defects or errors stiagi products, it could result in lost revenuesiuced ability to meet contractual obligations
and would be detrimental to our business and répuatdf new products, features, or content areassiepted or integrated by new or existing
customers, we may not be able to recover the ¢dbtsodevelopment and our financial performanch lvé harmed. Continued growth of our
SaaS-based customer population is dependent cabditly to continue to provide relevant productsl aervices in a timely manner. The
success of our business will depend on our alidityontinue providing our products and servicewelsas enhancing our courseware, produc
and service offerings that address the needs tthisege organizations.

We may be unable to continue to license our thirarfy software, on which a portion of our product drservice offerings rely, or we may
experience errors in this software, which could irease our costs and decrease our revenue.

We use technology components in some of our predhet have been licensed from third parties. eufoenses to these technologies may
be available to us on commercially reasonable teomat all. The loss of or inability to obtain maintain any of these licenses could result in
delays in the introduction of new products and isevor could force us to discontinue offering jwars of our workforce development or
research/patient experience solutions until eqaivtalechnology, if available, is identified, licexsand integrated. The operation of our
products would be impaired if errors occur in thpatty technology or content that we incorporaig, we may incur additional costs to repair
or replace the defective technology or contenndy be difficult for us to correct any errors ifirthparty products because the products are nc
within our control. Accordingly, our revenue couldcrease and our costs could increase in the efany errors in this technology.
Furthermore, we may become subject to legal clagtaed to licensed technology based on produsilitia infringement of intellectual
property or other legal theories. Even if theséntéado not result in liability to us, investigatiagd defending these claims could be expensive
time-consuming and result in suspension of or fatence with certain offerings to our clients amdidverse publicity that could harm our
business.

Financial Risks
A significant portion of our revenue is generatetbin a relatively small number of customel

We derive a substantial portion of our revenuemfeorelatively small number of customers. A terrtioraof our agreements with any of our
significant customers or a failure of these custene renew their contracts on favorable termsta@ll, could have a material adverse effec
our business.

A significant portion of our business is subject tenewal each year. Therefore, renewals have a gigant impact on our revenue an
operating results.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, approximagty of our net revenue was derived from our sujpsen-based solution products. Our
subscription-based customers have no obligatisariew their subscriptions for our products or smsiafter the expiration of the subscription
agreement, and in fact, some customers have eleoted renew their subscription. In addition, customers may renew at a lower pricing or
activity level. Historically, we have reported revad rates of our core platform, the HLC, and dutihg year ended December 31, 2013, we
renewed 97% of the annual HLC contract value updaewal and 97% of the
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HLC subscribers which were up for renewal. Our aongrs’ renewal rates may decline or fluctuate gesalt of a number of factors, including
but not limited to their dissatisfaction with owargice, a dissipation or cessation of their needfe or more of our products or services,
pricing or competitive product offerings. If we ameable to renew a substantial portion of the @mtérthat are up for renewal or maintain our
pricing, our revenue could be adversely affectducivwould have a material adverse affect on osults of operations and financial position.
For example, the requirement mandated by CMS faltheare organizations to transition to the ICDeb@ing system by October 2014 has
generated significant demand for our ICD-10 tragntourseware. Subscriptions of ICD-10 coursewagitipely influenced the Company’s
revenue and operating income during 2013, andxgrected to do the same during 2014. As ICD-10 siitsins begin to expire during 2014
and 2015, customers may choose not to renew thiesicsiptions on similar terms or at all, which abusult in a revenue decline in 2015
compared to 2014. HealthStream Research/Patiemriexgge Solutions product and service contracts&jly range from one to three years in
length, and customers are not obligated to renew tiontract with us after their contract expilkésur customers do not renew their
arrangements for our services, or if their actilétyels decline, our revenue may decline and osimess will suffer.

We may be unable to accurately predict the timirffg@venue recognition from sales activity as itaften dependent on achieving certain
events or performance milestones, and this inaRilitould impact our operating results.

Our ability to recognize revenue is dependent wgmeral factors including the transfer of custospeific information such as unique
subscriber IDs, which are required for us to immatrcustomers on our SaaS-based platform and e@ittform applications. Accordingly, if
customers do not provide us with the specifiedrimfation in a timely manner, our ability to recognizvenue will be delayed, which could
adversely impact our operating results. In addjtimplementation completion and acceptance of @aSsbased platform and certain platform
applications by our customers must be achievedeguesponses must be received and tabulated,diveény of courseware is required in
connection with subscription-based products folougcognize revenue.

Because we recognize revenue from subscriptionsdior products and services over the term of the sription period, downturns o
upturns in sales may not be immediately reflectacbur operating results.

We recognize approximately 72% of our revenue fomstomers monthly over the terms of their subsoripagreements, which have initial
contract terms ranging from one to four or fivenge@ds a result, much of the revenue we reporacheguarter is related to subscription
agreements entered into during previous quartenss€qjuently, a decline in new or renewed subsoriggreements in any one quarter will
necessarily be fully reflected in the revenue it tluarter and will negatively affect our revenuduture quarters. In addition, we may be
unable to adjust our cost structure to reflect taduced revenue. Accordingly, the effect of sigaifit downturns in sales and market
acceptance of our products and services may nfutllgeeflected in our results of operations uffititure periods. Additionally, our subscription
model also makes it difficult for us to rapidly rease our revenue through additional sales in anpg, as revenue from new customers must
be recognized over the applicable subscription t&imally, the majority of costs associated withr eales cycles are incurred up front before
revenue recognition commences, and therefore peabdtrong sales performance may increase ous aosite near term negatively affecting
our financial performance.

We may not be able to meet our strategic busindsgedaives unless we obtain additional financing, ish may not be available to us on
favorable terms, or at all

We expect our current cash and investment balaneeslving credit facility, and cash flows from op&ons to be sufficient to meet our cash
requirements through at least 2014. However, we megyl to raise additional funds in order to:

» develop new, or enhance existing, services or s

* respond to competitive pressur

» finance working capital requiremen

* acquire complementary businesses, technology, esbateroducts; o
» otherwise effectively execute our growth strate

At December 31, 2013, we had approximately $108ltomin cash, cash equivalents, and marketabteisiées. We also have up to

$20.0 million of availability under a revolving dlié facility, subject to certain covenants, whictpies in July 2014. We expect to incur
between $9.0 and $12.0 million of capital expemn@sy software development and content purchasésgi2®14. We actively review possible
business acquisitions to complement or enhanceraglucts and services. We may not have adequateacasinvestments or availability un
our revolving credit facility to consummate onenaore of these acquisitions. The capital market® lmeen experiencing extreme volatility ¢
disruption, and we cannot assure you that if wel rseklitional financing that it will be available tarms favorable to us, or at all. If adequate
funds are not available or are not available orpiable terms, our ability to fund expansion, talleantage of available opportunities, develo
or enhance services or products or otherwise resfmoompetitive pressures would be significaritlyited. If we raise additional funds by
issuing equity or convertible debt securities, geecentage ownership of our existing shareholdexnsme reduced.
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We have significant goodwill and identifiable intgible assets recorded on our balance sheet that im@gubject to impairment losses that
would reduce our reported assets and earnings.

As of December 31, 2013, our balance sheet inclgdedwill of $35.7 million and identifiable intarge assets of $8.9 million. There are
inherent uncertainties in the estimates, judgmantsassumptions used in assessing recoverabilggadwill and intangible assets. Economic,
legal, regulatory, competitive, reputational, cantual, and other factors could result in futurelides in the operating results of our business
units or market value declines that do not supiharicarrying value of goodwill and identifiableangible assets. If the value of our goodwill
and/or intangible assets is impaired, accountitgsrrequire us to reduce their carrying value apibrt an impairment charge, which would
reduce our reported assets and earnings for thedgarwhich an impairment is recognized.

The current uncertain economic environment may haaeegative impact on our customers and us whiclilcbhave a significant impact o
our revenue, operating results and financial conidit.

It is difficult to predict the full magnitude andichtion of the current uncertain economic environnaand its related impact on our customers,
suppliers and our company. For example, our customay experience fluctuations or declines in thasiness and as a consequence, some
customers may choose to invest less in informagchnology assets for their business which, in,tconld have an impact on us. The poter
negative effects on us include, but are not limttgedeductions in our renewal and revenue groates, shorter contract terms, pricing
pressures, and delays in payments from customatraitrease our accounts receivable resultingdetarioration of our cash flow and working
capital position. We continue to monitor generalramic conditions, however, and depending on tkieritg and/or duration of any economic
downturn, these circumstances could have a matatiarse effect on our revenue, results from oermtand financial condition.

We may not be able to demonstrate compliance wihb@&nes-Oxley Section 404 in a timely manner, ahé torrection of any deficiencies
identified during upcoming annual audits may be dtysand could harm our business.

Sarbanes-Oxley Section 404 requires our manageimeaport on, and requires our independent pulsiloanting firm to attest to, the
effectiveness of our internal controls over finahceporting. The rules governing the standardsetenet are complex and will require
significant process review, documentation andngstas well as possible remediation efforts for meptified deficiencies. This process of
review, documentation, testing and remediation sdlult in increased expenses and require signif@tiention from management and other
internal and external resources. Any material weakas identified during this process may preclsdeam asserting the effectiveness of our
internal controls. This may negatively affect otack price if we cannot effectively remediate thsues identified in a timely manner.

Changes in generally accepted accounting princip(€AAP) and other accounting regulations and intergiations could require us to delay
recognition of revenue and/or accelerate the rec@gm of expenses, resulting in lower earnings.

While we believe we correctly account for and redrg revenue and expenses, any changes in GAAB@r accounting regulations and
interpretations concerning revenue and expens@né@m could decrease our revenue or increasexpenses. Changes to regulations
concerning revenue recognition could require water our current revenue accounting practicescainde us to either defer revenue into a
future period, or to recognize lower revenue iuaent period. Likewise, changes to regulationsceoming expense recognition could require
us to alter our current expense accounting practoel cause us to defer recognition of expenseifiiture period, or to recognize increased
expenses in a current period. Changes to eithentevrecognition or expense recognition accoumtragtices could affect our financial
performance.

Risks Related to Sales, Marketing and Competition

Our operating margins could be affected if our onigg refinement to pricing models for our productsd services is not accepted by our
customers and the market.

We continue to make changes in our pricing andoooduct and service offerings to increase revemaet@a meet the needs of our customers.
We cannot predict whether our current pricing aratipcts and services, or any ongoing refinementsadee will be accepted by our existing
customer base or by prospective customers. If ostomers and potential customers decide not tgpaoce current or future pricing or prodi
and service offerings, it could have a materialemgle effect on our business.

14



Table of Contents

Risks Related to Operations

We may be unable to adequately develop our systpnegesses and support in a manner that will enabfeto meet the demand for our
services

We have provided our online products and serviceeesl 999 and continue to develop our ability tovule our solutions on both a
subscription and transactional basis over the heteiOur future success will depend on our abibtgffectively develop and maintain the
infrastructure, including procurement of additiohatdware and software, and implement the servigekiding customer support, necessary
meet the demand for our products and servicesir@bility from time to time to successfully develthe necessary systems and implement tt
necessary services on a timely basis has resultedricustomers experiencing some delays, inteangptnd/or errors in their service. Such
delays or interruptions may cause customers torbedalissatisfied with our service and move to compatroviders of traditional and online
training and education services. If this happensfrevenue and reputation could be adversely &tkethich would have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition.

Our business operations could be significantly dipted if we lose members of, or fail to integrateir management team.

Our future performance is substantially dependerthe continued services of our management teanoandbility to retain and motivate
them. The loss of the services of any of our ofiaa senior managers could harm our businesseasay not be able to find suitable
replacements. We do not have employment agreeméhtsiny of our key personnel, other than our chkiefcutive officer, and we do not
maintain any “key person” life insurance policies.

We may not be able to hire and retain a sufficiamimber of qualified employees and, as a result, way not be able to effectively execute
our growth strategy or maintain the quality of owgervices.

Our future success will depend on our ability taat, train, motivate, and retain other highlyllski technical, managerial, marketing, custa
support, and survey personnel. Competition foragenpersonnel is intense, especially for develgpeed designers and sales personnel, ar
may be unable to successfully attract sufficiegtiglified personnel. We have in the past and caetio experience difficulty hiring qualified
personnel in a timely manner for these positiotie ool of qualified technical personnel, in partée, is limited in Nashville, Tennessee,
where our headquarters are located. Our intervigwénter is located in Laurel, Maryland, and we ragyerience difficulty in maintaining al
recruiting qualified individuals to perform thesrgces. We will also need to maintain or incredmesize of our staff to support our
anticipated growth, without compromising the quadif our offerings or customer service. Our indpito locate, hire, integrate and retain
qualified personnel in sufficient numbers may redthe quality of our services and impair our apilit grow.

We may not be able to upgrade our hardware andwafie technology infrastructure quickly enough tofettively meet demand for our
services or our operations neec

We must continue to obtain reasonably priced, coroialkty available hardware and operating softwarevall as continue to enhance our
software and systems to accommodate the increasedfwur platform, the increased courseware anteobin our library, and the resulting
increase in operational demands on our businegssibes about hardware and software enhancementsaaed in part on estimated forecasts
of the growth in demand for our services. This gtoim demand for our services is difficult to foast and the potential audience for our
services is widespread and dynamic. If we are @ntbincrease the data storage and processingigapfiour systems at least as fast as the
growth in demand, our customers may encounter delagdisruptions in their service. Unscheduled diowa could harm our business and alsc
could discourage current and potential customers fusing or continuing to use our services andaeduture revenue. If we are unable to
acquire, update, or enhance our technology infraitre and systems quickly enough to effectivelynirecreased operational demands on ou
business, that may also have a material adversetefi our financial condition.

Our network infrastructure and computer systems asdftware may fail.

An unexpected event (including but not limited ttekecommunications failure, fire, earthquake, thieo catastrophic loss) at our Internet
service providers’ facilities or at our on-sitealécility could cause the loss of critical data @nevent us from offering our products and
services for an unknown period of time. System dowa could negatively affect our reputation andigbio sell our products and services
may expose us to significant third-party claimsr ®usiness interruption insurance may not adequat@hpensate us for losses that may
occur. In addition, we rely on third parties tow@ty store our archived data, house our web semwémetwork systems and connect us to the
Internet. While our service providers have planfugctertain contingencies, the failure by any afgé third parties to provide these services
satisfactorily and our inability to find suitableplacements would impair our ability to access igsshand operate our systems and software,
and our customers may encounter delays. Such disngpcould harm our reputation and cause custotndsecome dissatisfied and possibly
take their business to a competing provider, whiokld adversely affect our revenues.
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We may lose users and lose revenue if our securigasures fail.

If the security measures that we use to protedbousr or personal information are ineffective, waynose users of our services, which could
reduce our revenue, tarnish our reputation, angesubs to significant liability. We rely on sedyrand authentication technology licensed f
third parties. With this technology, we performlrgme credit card authorization and verificati@s, well as the encryption of other selected
secure customer data. We cannot predict whethse thecurity measures could be circumvented by eelanblogical developments. Further,
the audit processes and controls used within auymtion platforms may not be sufficient to ideptiind prevent errors or deliberate misus
addition, our software, databases and servers maylnerable to computer viruses, physical or ed@it attacks and similar disruptions. We
may need to spend significant resources to praigainst security breaches or to alleviate problemused by any breaches. We cannot assure
that we can prevent all security breaches.

We may experience errors in our software produdiattadminister and report on hospital performancand these errors could result in
action taken against us that could harm our busirses

Certain survey data collected and reported byuch as the survey data included as part of our CHRospital survey is used by CMS to
determine, in part, the amount of reimbursementrpts to hospitals, and any errors in data colacgurvey sampling, or statistical report
could result in reduced reimbursements to our liakpistomers if we are unable to correct theswrgrand this could, in turn, result in
litigation against us. Further, this survey dagoréed to CMS is then published by CMS to the gaingublic, and any errors we experience
result in incorrect scoring on our hospital customay result in damage to that hospital’s reputatand the hospital may in turn bring
litigation against us. We may be required to inddéynagainst such claims, and defending againstsarch claims could be costly, time
consuming and could negatively affect our business.

Risks Related to Government Regulation, Content anthtellectual Property
Government regulation may subject us to liability equire us to change the way we do business.

The laws and regulations that govern our businkaage rapidly. Evolving areas of law that are rat#\to our business include privacy and
security laws, proposed encryption laws, contegtliaion, information security accountability regtibn, sales and use tax laws and
regulations and attempts to regulate activitiesheninternet. In addition to being directly subjextertain requirements of the HIPAA privacy
and security regulations, we are required througttracts with our customers known as “businesscie®oagreements” to protect the privacy
and security of certain personal and health relmtfedmation. As of September 23, 2013, we are iregito comply with revised requirements
under the HIPAA privacy and security regulations;ept that existing business associate agreemeatsjaalify for an extended compliance
date of September 23, 2014. The rapidly evolvind) @mcertain regulatory environment could requiréaushange how we do business or incur
additional costs. Further, we cannot predict hoantfes to these laws and regulations might affecbosiness. Failure to comply with
applicable laws and regulations could subject ugviband criminal penalties, subject us to coatual penalties, including termination of our
customer agreements, damage our reputation andahd&timental impact on our business.

We may not be able to maintain our certification tonduct CMS mandated surveys, and this could adedr affect our business.

Our survey product offerings include providing synservices to assist customers in their compliavite CMS regulations. We are currently
designated by CMS as a certified vendor to offeHPS® Hospital Surveys and CAHPSlome Health Care Surveys, including data collec
and submission services. If we are unable to maiti@se certifications, or secure certificatioosfiiture CMS mandated surveys, we would
not be able to administer these survey instrumf@ntsur customers and our business may suffer.

Any reduction or change in the regulation of contiting education and training in the healthcare indtry may adversely affect our busine

Our business model is dependent in part on reqtiiadting and continuing education for healthcaiafgssionals and other healthcare worker:
resulting from regulations of state and federahaigs, state licensing boards and professionahigtions. Any change in these regulations
that reduce the requirements for continuing edanadnd training for the healthcare industry cowddiour business. In addition, a portion of
our business with pharmaceutical and medical dewviaeufacturers and hospitals is predicated on bilityato maintain accreditation status
with organizations such as the ACCME, ANCC, and ECPhe failure to maintain status as an accredgitestider could have a detrimental
effect on our business.
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We may be liable to third parties for content thiatavailable from our online library.

We may be liable to third parties for the contendur online library if the text, graphics, softwanr other content in our library violates
copyright, trademark, or other intellectual progeitghts, our content partners violate their coctiwal obligations to others by providing con

to our library, or the content does not confornatcepted standards of care in the healthcare giofesNe attempt to minimize these types of
liabilities by requiring representations and watiesrelating to our content partneostnership of the rights to distribute as well as élecurac

of their content. We also take necessary measoneview this content ourselves. Although our agreets with our content partners in most
instances contain provisions providing for indenwmaifion by the content providers in the event aiticurate content, our content partners may
not have the financial resources to meet this akibg. Alleged liability could harm our businessdamaging our reputation, requiring us to
incur legal costs in defense, exposing us to awaffdamages and costs, and diverting managemdteigian away from our business.

Protection of certain intellectual property may ifficult and costly, and our inability to proteatur intellectual property could reduce tr
value of our products and services.

Despite our efforts to protect our intellectual gmietary rights, a third party could, without autization, copy or otherwise misappropriate our
content, information from our databases, or othtslliectual property. Our agreements with employeessultants and others who participate
in development activities could be breached andltr@sour trade secrets becoming known, or outdraecrets and other intellectual property
could be independently developed by competitors nvilg not have adequate remedies for such breachpgstections against such competitor
developments. In addition, the laws of some foreiguntries do not protect our proprietary rightsite same extent as the laws of the United
States, and effective intellectual property protectay not be available in those jurisdictions. ®derently own several applications and
registrations for trademarks and domain namesdruthited States and other countries as well aginbesbmmon law trademarks and service
marks. The current system for registering, allogatind managing domain names has been the subjgigfadion and proposed regulatory
reform. Additionally, legislative proposals haveehenade by the federal government that would affimoéd protection to owners of database:
of information, such as stock quotes. This protectf databases already exists in the EuropeannUnio

Our business could be harmed if unauthorized ainiieinge upon or misappropriate our intellectpdperty, proprietary systems, content,
platform, services or other information. Our effotd protect our intellectual property through cagiyt, trademarks and other controls may no
be adequate. For instance, we may not be abletveserademark or service mark registrations fork&ién the United States or in foreign
countries, or to secure patents for our proprieproglucts and services, and even if we are suadésgibtaining patent and/or trademark
registrations, these registrations may be opposé@talidated by a third party.

There has been substantial litigation in the comipaihd online industries regarding intellectualgemy assets, particularly patents. Third
parties may claim infringement by us with respeaturrent and future products, trademarks or giheprietary rights, and we may
counterclaim against such third parties in sucloast Any such claims or counterclaims could besticonsuming, result in costly litigation,
divert management'’s attention, cause product reldakys, require us to redesign our productsjcestur use of the intellectual property
subject to such claim, or require us to enter ini@lty or licensing agreements, any of which ccidde a material adverse effect upon our
business, financial condition and operating res@lteh royalty and licensing agreements may natvadable on terms acceptable to us, if at
all.

We may be liable for infringing the intellectual piperty rights of others.

Our competitors may develop similar intellectuaerty, duplicate our products and/or serviceslesign around any patents or other
intellectual property rights we hold. In the futpliggation may be necessary to enforce our iat#lial property rights or to determine the
validity and scope of the patents, intellectualpamby or other proprietary rights of third partiedjich could be time consuming and costly and
have an adverse effect on our business and finaraidition. Intellectual property infringement ittes could be made against us, especially a
the number of our competitors grows. These clagusn if not meritorious, could be expensive aneédiour attention from operating our
company and result in a temporary inability to theeintellectual property subject to such claimatidition, if we and/or our affiliates and
customers become liable to third parties for infimg their intellectual property rights, we could tequired to pay a substantial damage awart
and develop comparable non-infringing intellectuaperty, to obtain a license, or to cease progidire content or services that contain the
infringing intellectual property. We may be unatdedevelop non-infringing intellectual propertyaistain a license on commercially
reasonable terms, if at all.
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ltem 1B.  Unresolved Staff Commen
None.
Item 2. Properties

Our principal office is located in Nashville, Terssee. Our lease for approximately 73,000 squatefahis location expires in April 2017. T
lease provides for a two-yeanewal option with rates increasing during theevea period. We are leasing approximately 19,0Qegfeet @
office space in Laurel, Maryland. The lease expindglarch 2016. We are leasing approximately 7 8@@are feet of office space in
Brentwood, Tennessee, and the lease expires irb@cid15. We are also leasing approximately 6,00@u® feet of office space in Pensacola
Florida, and the lease expires in March 2015.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:
None.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure

Not applicable

PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securitit

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Globae8eMarket under the symbol “HSTM”. Our common &tbegan trading on the
NASDAQ National Market on April 14, 200!

The following table sets forth, for each quartettaf two most recent years, the high and low ctpgiices per share of our common stock as
reported on the NASDAQ Global Select Market:

Common Stock Price

2013 2012
High Low High Low
First Quarter $25.2:¢ $20.5¢ $24.0¢ $16.4¢
Second Quarte 27.7¢ 20.0¢ 26.2: 20.7:2
Third Quartel 37.8¢ 26.0: 30.41 23.2i
Fourth Quarte 39.4¢ 30.21 30.5: 22.2¢

As of February 27, 2014, there were 96 registemddens and 7,449 beneficial holders of our comntonks Because many of such shares are
held by brokers and other institutions on behallwreholders, we are unable to estimate thertataber of shareholders represented by thes
record holders.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsiocommon stock, and we do not anticipate pagash dividends in the foreseeable
future. We intend to retain earnings for use indperation of our business.

See the table labeled “Securities Authorized feu#mce Under Equity Compensation Plans” to be awdan our 2014 Proxy Statement,
incorporated by reference in Part I, Item 12kd§tAnnual Report on Form 10-K.
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STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The graph below compares the cumulative total $tedgler return on our common stock since Decembg@a8, with the cumulative total
return of companies on the NASDAQ Composite Indack the NASDAQ Computer & Data Processing Index dlkiersame period (assuming
the investment of $100 in our common stock, the RA® Composite Index and the NASDAQ Computer & DRtacessing Index on
December 31, 2008 (for our stock and the indicad)rainvestment of all dividends).

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN @
Among HealthStream, Inc., The NASDAQ Composite Inde
And The NASDAQ Computer & Data Processing Index

[ 51,600
51.400
51,200
51000
SEO00
S
=400
5200 - .___-'-f"'(’.
50
Cazses | 12/09 | 1210 | 1211 | 121 | 12/13
—e—Healths ream, Inc. 10000 | 16953 | 34506 | 79185 | 1,043.35 140026
——NASDAQ Compuosite 100,00 144.88 170.58 171.30 199,99 183,39
_'_”Aﬁﬂﬁ‘i',f:(':f:i':;'&”"“ 10000 | 16528 | 17977 | 177.69 | 19122 290.3%
il Ha althStre amy, Ind. WAEDRE O Comgrasite —— NasDac C-ﬂﬂ'lle-'lEl & Data pr{liﬁiiil'lg
.

(1) $100 invested on 12/31/2008 in stock or ir-including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal yeadiag December 3!

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES
None.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
None.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The selected statement of income and balance datefor the past five years are derived from audlitad consolidated financial statements.
You should read the following selected financiabda conjunction with our consolidated financittements and the notes to those statemer
and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Firer@ondition and Results of Operations” locatezkalhere in this report.

HealthStream acquired DCI on June 29, 2012, Sy.te@ctober 19, 2012, and BLG on September 9, ZDi8.results of operations for these
acquired companies are included within our conatéid statement of income data effective from the dhacquisition. Revenues may be
subject to fluctuations as discussed further in filigement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financialdition and Results of Operations”
located elsewhere in this report. During 2013, 2@MA.1, and 2010, we recorded a tax provision pf@apmately $6.4 million, $5.9 million,
$4.4 million and $2.9 million, respectively. Duri2§09 we recognized portions of our deferred tae®sthrough the reversal of the valuation
allowance, resulting in deferred income tax begsefftapproximately $9.1 million. As a result of $leefactors, the annual results presented
below are not comparable. The operating resultarigrsingle year are not necessarily indicativihefresults to be expected in the future.

Year Ended December 31
(in thousands, except per share datz

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:

Revenues, ne $132,27. $103,73. $ 82,06¢ $65,75¢ $57,39¢
Total operating costs and expen 117,60t 90,27: 70,72¢ 58,69: 52,27t
Income from operation 14,66¢ 13,45¢ 11,33¢ 7,05¢ 5,122
Net income $ 841t $ 764 $ 6,94 $ 4,15¢ $13,97:
Net income per sha~ basic $ 031 $ 02¢ $ 031 $ 01¢ $ 0.6f
Net income per sha~ diluted $ 03¢ $ 026 $ 02¢ $ 018 $ 0.6/
Weighted average shares of common stock outstar basic 26,85: 26,12¢ 22,44¢ 21,76" 21,45¢
Weighted average shares of common stock outstar diluted 27,66 27,507 23,74¢ 22,48t 21,83t
BALANCE SHEET DATA:

Cash and cash equivale $ 59,537 $ 41,36 $ 76,90 $17,86¢ $12,28"
Marketable securitie- short and long terr 48,65¢ 51,95 12,54¢ 5,70z —
Accounts receivable, n 25,31« 15,34¢ 16,01 11,06¢ 9,571
Goodwill and intangible asse 44,61¢ 38,10 23,10« 23,99: 24,93¢
Working capital 90,91: 83,25¢ 78,63 19,52 10,71«
Total asset 212,59 174,52¢ 154,23 82,01: 71,00:
Deferred revenu 38,16¢ 23,14¢ 22,75¢ 16,74( 12,23¢
Shareholder equity 149,43: 132,19¢ 120,91! 56,79: 51,82
Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionna Results of Operations

The following discussion of the financial conditiand results of operations of HealthStream shoelteld in conjunction with “Selected
Financial Data” and HealthStream’s Consolidate@faial Statements and related notes thereto indlatewhere in this report. This
discussion contains forward-looking statementsithadlve risks and uncertainties. HealthStreamtsi@aresults may differ significantly from
the results discussed and those anticipated i tfloesward-looking statements as a result of mantofa, including but not limited to those
described under “Risk Factors” and elsewhere mrport.

OVERVIEW

We provide subscription-based workforce developragitresearch/patient experience solutions foitinesle organizations—all designed to
assess and develop the people that deliver pateatwhich, in turn, supports the improvement dfibess and clinical outcomes. Our
workforce development products are used by heakhmayanizations to meet a broad range of thainitrg, certification, competency
assessment, performance appraisal, and developraeds, while our research/patient experience ptsguwovide our customers information
about patients’ experiences and how to improve tiveonkforce engagement, physician relations, amdroanity perceptions of their services.
HealthStream’s customers include healthcare orgéairs, pharmaceutical and medical device compaaresother participants in the
healthcare industry. Our customer base includesappately 4,000 healthcare organizations (predereily acute-care facilities) throughout
all 50 states.
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Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2013appreximately $132.3 million compared to $103.7liomil for the year ended

December 31, 2012, an increase of 27.5%. Operatawgne increased by 9.0% to $14.7 million for 20d@npared to $13.5 million for 2012.
Net income increased by 10.1% to $8.4 million L2, compared to $7.6 million for 2012. Earnings §iere (EPS) were $0.30 per st
(diluted) for 2013 compared to $0.28 per sharei(di) for 2012. Revenues from HealthStream Worlf@evelopment Solutions grew by
32.1%, or $25.3 million, and revenues from Healtb®nh Research/Patient Experience Solutions gre¥8to, or $3.3 million. We had
approximately 3.71 million total subscribers, ofighhapproximately 3.39 million were fully implemewk subscribers on our SaaS-based
platform at December 31, 2013. During 2013, we watkapproximately 700,000 subscribers, representi@g renewal rate for the
subscribers up for renewal, and a 97% renewalobaded on the annual contract value up for reneddlitionally, annualized revenue per
implemented subscriber increased to $32.41 percsbls at the end of 2013, up from $27.04 per sulbscat the end of 2012, representing a
19.9% increase. As of December 31, 2013 our caghnmestment balances approximated $108.2 milkmrl we maintained full availability
under our $20.0 million revolving credit facility.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenues from our subscription-basmitfarce development products and courseware siphiecrs based on a per person
subscription basis, and in some cases on a peskdeasis. Fees are based on the size of theaiéstitir organizations’ employee user
population and the service offerings to which teascribe. Subscription-based revenue is recognaally over the service period of the
underlying contract. All other service revenuesramgnized as the related services are performpbducts are delivered.

Revenues derived from the license of installedwsf products, associated with the Sy.Med prodactsrecognized upon shipment or
installation of the software. Software support amantenance revenues are recognized ratably ogdgetm of the related agreement.

Revenues from research/patient experience seraieagcognized when survey results are delivereddtomers via either Internet-based
reporting throughout the survey period or by prawidfinal survey results once all services are detep A significant portion of revenues for
survey and reporting services that are providealtiin the use of Internet-based reporting methodkdogye recognized using the proportional
performance method, reflecting recognition throughtbe service period which corresponds with theespcycle and reporting access by the
customer, which typically ranges from one to fivenths. If survey results are delivered to the qustoafter all services have been completed
then the corresponding revenues are recognizadlimfthe period such results are provided todhstomer. Coaching and consulting revenue
are generally recognized using the proportiondigperance method as these services are performedghout the contract term. All other
revenues are recognized as the related servicgedmgmed or products are delivered to the custoRevenues for these services can be
subject to seasonal factors based on customergresgents that can impact the timing, frequencyl, \asiume of survey cycles.

Revenues from professional services include comamtenance, consulting, and implementation sesviEees are based on the time and
efforts involved, and revenue is recognized upangmetion of performance milestones using the propoal performance method.

We offer training services for clients to facilg@antegration of our SaaS-based products. Fedsdioing are based on the time and efforts of
the personnel involved. Basic online training isgm@lly included in the initial contract; howevigremental training is fee based and reve
are generally recognized upon completion of trajréarvices.

Accounting for Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using thet assl liability method, whereby deferred tax assed liabilities are determined basec
the temporary differences between the financiaéstant and tax bases of assets and liabilities unedst tax rates that will be in effect for the
year in which the differences are expected to ateable income. Management periodically assebsesealizability of its deferred tax asse
and to the extent that we believe a recovery idikely, we establish a valuation allowance to reglthe deferred tax asset to the amount we
estimate will be recoverable. The Company maintaimaluation allowance of approximately $1.3 milli@r the portion of its deferred tax
assets which are related to the portion of our N@dsociated with deductions for stock option exesi

Software Development Costs

Software development includes our costs to devaf@pmaintain our products and applications, inclgdiur SaaS-based workforce
development platform products and our survey répgpipplications. Once planning is completed anceigpment begins, we capitalize
internal costs and payments to third parties aasetiwith the development efforts where the lifpeptancy is greater than one year and the
anticipated cash flows are expected to exceeddsieat the related asset. During 2013 and 201Z;apéalized approximately $4.3 million and
$4.4 million, respectively, for software developrheéduch amounts are included in the accompanyinga@ated balance sheets under the
caption “capitalized software development.” We atimercapitalized software development costs oveir ixpected life, which is generally
three to five years. Capitalized software developincests are subject to a periodic impairment rgvireaccordance with our impairment
review policy.

In connection with software development, our sigaifiit estimates involve the assessment of the dpweint period for new products, as well
as the expected useful life of underlying softwar@roduct created. Once capitalized, software ldpweent costs are subject to the policies
estimates described below regarding goodwill, igiales and other long-lived assets.
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Goodwill, Intangibles and Other Long-lived Assets

The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment atrporting unit level by assessing whether it @enlikely than not that the fair value of a
reporting unit exceeds its carrying value. If thisessment concludes that is more likely thanhadthe fair value of a reporting unit exceeds
its carrying value, then goodwill is not considenegbaired and no further impairment testing is el Conversely, if the assessment
concludes that it is more likely than not that thie value of a reporting unit is less than itsrgarg value, a goodwill impairment test is
performed to compare the fair value of the repgrtinit to its carrying value. The Company determifegr value of the reporting units using
both income and market based models. Our modetsicosignificant assumptions and accounting esgsabout discount rates, future cash
flows and terminal values that could materiallyeaffour operating results or financial positiothi#y were to change significantly in the future
and could result in an impairment. We perform camdwill impairment assessment whenever events amgés in facts or circumstances
indicate that impairment may exist and also dutivegfourth quarter each year. Intangible asset#ret long-lived assets are also reviewed
for events or changes in facts and circumstanagh,ibternally and externally, which may indicateimpairment is present. We measure any
impairment using observable market values or distlifuture cash flows from the related long-liaadets. The cash flow estimates and
discount rates incorporate management’s best eéstimasing appropriate and customary assumpticthpiajections at the date of evaluation.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We estimate the allowance for doubtful accountagibioth a specific and non-specific identificatroethod. Management's evaluation
includes reviewing past due accounts on a caseabg-basis, and determining whether an accountghbheuleserved, based on the facts and
circumstances surrounding each potentially unctliecaccount. An allowance is also maintainedaocounts not specifically identified that
may become uncollectible in the future. Uncolldetiaccounts are written-off in the period managerbefieves it has exhausted every
opportunity to collect payment from the customeadRiebt expense is recorded when events or ciramees indicate an additional allowance
is necessary based on our specific and sgeEific identification approach. Our allowance doubtful accounts totaled approximately $211.
as of December 31, 2013.

Stock Based Compensation

We recognize compensation expense using a faievsised method for costs related to share basedegpdy including stock options and
restricted share units. Measurement of such conapiensexpense requires significant estimation astiaptions; however, we believe that the
Black Scholes option pricing model we use for clting the fair value of our stock based compensgbians provides a reasonable
measurement methodology using a framework thatdelywadopted.

As of December 31, 2013, we had two stock incemlaas which qualified as stock based compensaliems. During the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, we recordecdxzippeitely $1.5 million, $1.1 million, and $0.8 nidlh of stock based compensation
expense, respectively. We have historically grastedk options or restricted share units to ouragament group on an annual basis, or whel
new members of the management group begin theilogment. We have historically granted stock optionsestricted share units to non-
employee members of our board of directors in auetjon with our annual shareholders meeting, areas members are added on a pro rata
basis based on the time elapsed since our annar@isiiders’ meeting. We expect to continue progaiguity based awards to our
management group and our board of directors fofdreseeable future. As of December 31, 2013, fatate compensation cost related to nor
vested awards not yet recognized was approxim&tly million net of estimated forfeitures, with aighted average expense recognition
period of 2.3 years. Future compensation experwagnition for new equity based award grants wilwaepending on the timing and size of
new awards granted, changes in the market prigelatility of our common stock, changes in riskefliaterest rates, or if actual forfeitures
vary significantly from our estimates.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Revenues and Expense Components
The following descriptions of the components ofenewes and expenses apply to the comparison otsesdperations.

Revenues, neRevenues for our HealthStream Workforce DeveloprSefiitions business segment primarily consist effthlowing products
and services: provision of services through ouiSSaased platform, authoring tools, a variety ofrseware subscriptions, competency and
performance appraisal tools, implementation anggling services, content development, online saéésing courses (RepDirect™),
HospitalDirect® , SimVentures, and a variety of othéucational activities to serve professionals whak within healthcare organizations.
HealthStream Workforce Development Solutions reesralso include products from the recent acquisstiof DCI and Sy.Med. Revenues for
our HealthStream Research/Patient Experience Sokibusiness segment consist of quality and setiisfasurveys, data analyses of survey
results, coaching/consulting services, and othegarch-based measurement tools focused on patemiéoyees, physicians, and other
members of the community.
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Cost of Revenues (excluding depreciation and amaditin).Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and amatitin) consists primarily of
salaries and employee benefits, stock based comapemsemployee travel and lodging, materials, autsed phone survey support, contract
labor, hosting costs, and other direct expensexidsed with revenues, as well as royalties paid$3o content providers based on a
percentage of revenues. Personnel costs withinof@etenues are associated with individuals thailifate product delivery, provide services,
conduct, process and manage phone and paper-hasegiss handle customer support calls or inquinesnage the technology infrastructure
for our hosted applications, manage content angeggervices, coordinate content maintenance syvand provide training or
implementation services.

Product DevelopmenProduct development consists primarily of salasied employee benefits, contract labor, stock basetbensation,
content acquisition costs before technologicalibélity is achieved, costs associated with the dgwment of content and expenditures
associated with maintaining, developing and opegatiur training, delivery and administration platis. In addition, product development
expenses are associated with the development oboftware feature enhancements and new produatsofel costs within product
development include our systems, application deraknt, and quality assurance teams, product mas\aayat other personnel associated witt
content and product development.

Sales and Marketingsales and marketing consists primarily of saladesymissions and employee benefits, stock basegeasation,
employee travel and lodging, advertising, tradeansh@romotions, and related marketing costs. We &dostional customer conference in
Nashville known a“Summit,” a portion of the costs of which are indad in sales and marketing expenses. Personnslwiikin sales and
marketing include our sales teams, relationshipagars, and marketing personnel.

Other General and Administrative Expengether general and administrative expenses consisaply of salaries and employee benefits,
stock based compensation, employee travel andrigdéacility costs, office expenses, fees for psefenal services, business development an
acquisition related costs, and other operationpéages. Personnel costs within general and adnaitivg expenses include individuals
associated with normal corporate functions (acdagntegal, human resources, administrative, irgeimformation systems, and executive
management) as well as personnel who maintainaareditation status with various organizations.

Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization consist of fixed agspreciation, amortization of intangibles consiaito have
definite lives, amortization of content developmfags, and amortization of capitalized softwareetdigyment.

Other Income (Expense), N&he primary component of other income is interasbime related to interest earned on cash, cashiadeunis and
investments in marketable securities. The primammonent of other expense is interest expensedetatour revolving credit facility.

2013 Compared to 2012

Revenues, neRevenues increased approximately $28.5 millior2 5%, to $132.3 million for 2013 from $103.7 nahi for 2012. Revenues
for 2013 consisted of $103.8 million, or 78% ofalatevenue, for HealthStream Workforce Developn8aititions and $28.5 million, or 22%
total revenue, for HealthStream Research/Patiepefience Solutions. In 2012, revenues consisté&Y®f6 million, or 76% of total revenue,
for HealthStream Workforce Development Solutiond $85.2 million, or 24% of total revenue, for Hé&8tream Research/Patient Experience
Solutions.

Revenues for HealthStream Workforce Developmenttiwls increased $25.3 million, or 32.1%, over 2&venues from our subscription-
based workforce development products increase@®Bys$nillion, or 31.0% over 2012 due to a highember of subscribers and more
courseware consumption by subscribers. Annualigedrue per implemented subscriber increased b4 99$32.41 per subscriber at the
end of 2013 compared to $27.04 per subscribereatitid of 2012. Our implemented subscribers inctebgd 5.4% during 2013 to 3.39 milli
subscribers at the end of 2013 compared to 2.9maubscribers at the end of 2012. Additionallyg, had a 19.6% increase in total
subscribers, with 3.71 million total subscriber®atember 31, 2013 compared to 3.1 million totaksubers at December 31, 2012. Revenue
in 2013 were positively influenced by coursewaressuiptions associated with, among other produi€®; 10 training. Revenues from ICD-10
training were approximately $13.9 million in 20H8) increase of $11.5 million over 2012. Revenuesifour credentialing software product,
an installed solution, contributed $3.9 million hgr 2013, up $3.4 million over 2012. Revenues fi®imVentures, our collaborative
arrangement with Laerdal Medical A/S, increase&®§4,000, or 39.8 percent, over the prior year2@ $nillion. Revenues from projebasec
services decreased $1.2 million from the prior yhkar to fewer content development projects.

Revenues for HealthStream Research/Patient Experigalutions increased $3.3 million or 13.1%, ®@t2. Revenues from Patient
Insights™ surveys, our survey research productgbaérates recurring revenues, increased by $2i6rmbr 12.8%, over the prior year.
Revenues from other surveys, which are conductezhanal or bannual cycles, declined by $449,000, or 8.3%, coetpto the prior year di
to fewer survey engagements. The financial resoiftBaptist Leadership Group (BLG) have been inetlich the Company’s financial
statements from the date of acquisition (Septer@p2013) and are included in the HealthStream RekHAzatient Experience Solutions
segment. BLG revenues were approximately $1.2anildluring 2013, and contributed to the revenues®se over 2012.
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Cost of Revenues (excluding depreciation and amatitin).Cost of revenues increased approximately $13.9amjlbr 33.5%, to $55.6 millic
for 2013 from $41.7 million for 2012. Cost of rewsrs as a percentage of revenues was 42.0% of revéom2013 compared to 40.2% of
revenues for 2012. Cost of revenues for Health8trdsrkforce Development Solutions increased appnakely $11.1 million to $39.5
million and approximated 38.0% and 36.1% of reverfoe HealthStream Workforce Development Solutifims2013 and 2012, respectively.
The increase is primarily associated with increasgdlties paid by us resulting from growth in ceeware subscription revenues and incre
personnel expenses. Cost of revenues for Healtn8tResearch/Patient Experience Solutions increggeaximately $2.9 million to $16.1
million and approximated 56.7% and 52.7% of reverfoe HealthStream Research/Patient ExperiencdiSotufor 2013 and 2012,
respectively. The increase is primarily the restibdditional costs associated with the growthatignt survey volume over the prior year and
increased personnel expenses, including costsiatsbaevith the acquisition of BLG during SeptemBéd 3.

Product DevelopmenProduct development expenses increased approxing&8et million, or 36.6%, to $11.8 million for 201®m $8.6
million for 2012. Product development expenses psraentage of revenues were 8.9% and 8.3% of vegcior 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Product development expenses for HealthStream WiarkfDevelopment Solutions increased approxim#&@lg million and approximated
9.9% and 9.0% of revenues for HealthStream Workf@evelopment for 2013 and 2012, respectively. imbease over the prior year is due
to additional personnel expenses associated withdexelopment initiatives related to our platformgucts. Product development expenses
for HealthStream Research/Patient Experience $olsitiecreased approximately $75,000 and approxinga&o and 6.2% of revenues for
HealthStream Research/Patient Experience Soluiio2813 and 2012, respectively.

Sales and Marketingsales and marketing expenses, including persommséd,ancreased approximately $4.2 million, or 20.%0 $24.1 millior
for 2013 from $19.9 million for 2012. Sales and keting expenses as a percentage of revenues w% Bhd 19.2% of revenues for 2013
and 2012, respectively.

Sales and marketing expenses for HealthStream WhakDevelopment Solutions increased approxim#t#4!$ million and approximated
17.6% and 17.9% of revenues for HealthStream Wockf®evelopment Solutions for 2013 and 2012, respg. This expense amount
increase is primarily due to additional personmal eelated expenses, increased commissions assbeidh higher sales performance
compared to the prior year period, and increasatrexpenses. Sales and marketing expenses ftthBeaam Research/Patient Experience
Solutions decreased approximately $4,000, and appated 19.0% and 21.5% of revenues for Health8trRasearch/Patient Experience
Solutions for 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Other General and Administrative Expengether general and administrative expenses increggaaximately $4.9 million, or 36.4%, to
$18.3 million for 2013 from $13.5 million for 201@ther general and administrative expenses ascamge of revenues were 13.9% and
13.0% of revenues for 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Other general and administrative expenses for Hgattam Workforce Development Solutions increagguiaximately $1.0 million over the
prior year period primarily due to additional pareel, rent, and other support costs, while otheega and administrative expenses for
HealthStream Research/Patient Experience Soluitimnsased approximately $200,000 compared to tioe pear period primarily due to
additional personnel. The unallocated corporatégroof other general and administrative expenseeased approximately $3.7 million over
the prior year period, primarily associated witldiidnal personnel, professional fees, stock basmipensation expense, rent, taxes, and oth
general expenses, as well as one-time expensesatesowith the acquisition of BLG. During 2013, weurred approximately $405,000 of
costs associated with both the completed acquisiifdLG and other costs for evaluating potentiahsactions as part of our business
development initiatives.

Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization increased approxitp&te.2 million, or 17.9%, to $7.9 million for 20X8m
$6.7 million for 2012. The increase primarily reésdlfrom amortization of capitalized software depehent assets and amortization of
intangibles assets, as well as depreciation expesseeiated with leasehold improvements to our WhshTennessee office space.

Other Income (Expense), NeéDther income (expense), net was approximatelyp $0D for 2013 compared to $118,000 for 2012. The
improvement over the prior year period was assediatith higher interest income from investmentmarketable securities.

Income Tax ProvisiorThe Company recorded a provision for income taxéiSal million for 2013 compared to $5.9 millionrf2012. The
Company’s effective tax rate was 43.3% for 2013 garad to 43.7% for 2012.

Net IncomeNet income increased approximately $773,000, at%0to $8.4 million for 2013 from $7.6 million f@012. Earnings per diluted
share were $0.30 per share for 2013, compared.28 §@r diluted share for 2012.

Adjusted EBITDA (which we define as net income refmterest, income taxes, stock-based compensatnshdepreciation and amortization)
increased by 12.7% to approximately $23.9 millionZ013 compared to $21.2 million for 2012. Thipmwvement is consistent with the
factors mentioned above. See Reconciliation of B@AP Financial Measures in Management’s Discusaiwh Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations for our reciiatodn of this calculation to measures under USABA
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2012 Compared to 2011

Revenues, neRevenues increased approximately $21.7 millior264%, to $103.7 million for 2012 from $82.1 miliidor 2011. Revenues 1
2012 consisted of $78.6 million, or 76% of totalerue, for HealthStream Workforce Development Sahstand $25.2 million, or 24% of to
revenue, for HealthStream Research/Patient Expezi€olutions. In 2011, revenues consisted of $5#lion, or 71% of total revenue, for
HealthStream Workforce Development Solutions antlGnillion, or 29% of total revenue, for Health&tm Research/Patient Experience
Solutions.

Revenues for HealthStream Workforce Developmenttiwls increased $20.5 million, or 35.3%, over 2@dvenues from our subscription-
based workforce development products increased.By6$nillion, or 32.2% over 2011 due to a highember of subscribers and more
courseware consumption by subscribers. Annualigedrue per implemented subscriber increased byd, Tor$27.04 per subscriber at the
end of 2012 compared to $22.97 per subscribereatnid of 2011. Our implemented subscriber baseased by 14% during 2012 to

2.94 million implemented subscribers at the end0df2 compared to 2.57 million implemented subscsila¢ the end of 2011. Additionally, we
had a 13% increase in total subscribers, with 3llomtotal subscribers at December 31, 2012 camegbdo 2.75 million total subscribers at
December 31, 2011. Revenues from project-basedtserincreased by $1.5 million compared to 2011tduaore engagements than the prior
year. Revenues from SimVentures, our collaboraivangement with Laerdal Medical, increased appnately $844,000 over 201

Revenues for HealthStream Research/Patient Experigolutions increased $1.2 million or 4.9%, ov@t 2 Revenues from Patient Insights™
surveys, our survey research product that generatesring revenues, increased by $1.8 millionl @1%, over 2011. Revenues from other
surveys, which are conducted on annual or bi-ancy@és, declined by $633,000, or 10.5%, compawe2DiLl due to fewer survey
engagements.

Cost of Revenues (excluding depreciation and amaiitin).Cost of revenues increased approximately $10.6amjlbr 34.1%, to $41.7 millic
for 2012 from $31.1 million for 2011. Cost of rewss as a percentage of revenues was 40.2% of rewémi2012 compared to 37.9% of
revenues for 2011. Cost of revenues for Health8trdeorkforce Development Solutions increased appnaely $9.5 million to $28.4 million
and approximated 36.1% and 32.4% of revenues fafthgtream Workforce Development Solutions for 2ah@ 2011, respectively. The
increase is primarily associated with increase@it@s paid by us resulting from growth in coursesvsubscription revenues, increased
personnel expenses, and increased costs assowitliqutoject-based services. Cost of revenues &altiStream Research/Patient Experience
Solutions increased approximately $1.0 million 188 million and approximated 52.7% and 51.0% wéneies for HealthStream
Research/Patient Experience Solutions for 201228dd, respectively. The increase is primarily tgutt of additional costs associated with
the growth in patient survey volume over 2011.

Product DevelopmenProduct development expenses increased approxingtel million, or 15.2%, to $8.6 million for 20¥®m $7.5
million for 2011. Product development expenses psraentage of revenues were 8.3% and 9.1% of veseior 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Product development expenses for HealthStream WiarkfDevelopment Solutions increased approxima&&lg million and approximated
9.0% and 10.2% of revenues for HealthStream Wockf@evelopment Solutions for 2012 and 2011, respdygt The decrease as a percent

of revenue is the result of the growth in revenoaesr the prior year period, while the increaserimoant is due to additional personnel expense
associated with the maintenance of our platformyelsas working on new product development inities. Product development expenses for
HealthStream Research/Patient Experience Soluitimnsased approximately $4,000 and approximate¥ @2d 6.5% of revenues for
HealthStream Research/Patient Experience Soluitio®812 and 2011, respectively.

Sales and Marketingsales and marketing expenses, including persomséd,dncreased approximately $3.9 million, or 24,20 $19.9 millior
for 2012 from $16.0 million for 2011. Sales and keding expenses as a percentage of revenues we%% Bhd 19.5% of revenues for 2012
and 2011, respectively.

Sales and marketing expenses for HealthStream \MmekDevelopment Solutions increased approxim&®Ig million and approximated
17.9% and 18.7% of revenues for HealthStream Wockf®evelopment Solutions for 2012 and 2011, rdspey. This expense increase is
primarily due to additional personnel and relatedemses, increased travel expenses, increasedtingrkpending, increased expenses for oul
annual customer Summit, and increased commissestcated with higher sales performance comparéuktprior year period. Sales and
marketing expenses for HealthStream Research/Pa&bgrerience Solutions increased approximately &Y, and approximated 21.5% and
19.7% of revenues for HealthStream Research/Pdiquerience Solutions for 2012 and 2011, respdgtivdie expense increase was prims
due to additional personnel and related expensgfareased commissions.

Other General and Administrative Expengether general and administrative expenses increggaeximately $2.7 million, or 25.0%, to
$13.5 million for 2012 from $10.8 million for 2010ther general and administrative expenses ascamgge of revenues were 13.0% and
13.1% of revenues for 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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Other general and administrative expenses for H8atam Workforce Development Solutions increagguaximately $644,000 over 2011
primarily due to employee recruiting costs, rent] ather support costs, while other general andridirative expenses for HealthStream
Research/Patient Experience Solutions decreasedxamately $302,000 compared to 2011 primarily ttuwer personnel costs. The
unallocated corporate portion of other general ashdinistrative expenses increased approximatel ®dlion over 2011, primarily associated
with additional personnel, professional fees, stog&ed compensation expense, rent, franchise @xésther general expenses, as well as or
time expenses associated with the acquisitions@ifand Sy.Med. During 2012, we incurred approxinya$678,000 of costs associated with
the completed acquisitions of DCI and Sy.Med, atibiocosts for evaluating potential transactionpaas of our business development
initiatives.

Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization increased approxim&te.2 million, or 23.1%, to $6.7 million for 20f2om
$5.4 million for 2011. The increase primarily raedl from amortization of capitalized software depehent assets and amortization of
intangibles assets for DCI and Sy.Med within Heaitbham Workforce Development Solutions and deptieci@&xpense associated with
leasehold improvements to our Nashville, Tenneeffeze space.

Other Income (Expense), NeDther income, net was approximately $118,00@642 compared to $10,000 for 2011. The improveroeet
2011 was associated with higher interest incomm firovestments in marketable securities.

Income Tax ProvisiorThe Company recorded a provision for income taX&5® million for 2012 compared to $4.4 millionrf2011. The
Company’s effective tax rate was 43.7% for 2012 parad to 38.8% for 2011. The increase in the affedtx rate primarily resulted from
changes in certain state apportionment factor estisy which resulted in a higher proportion of meosubject to taxation in those states and &
reduction in our state operating loss carryforwards

Net IncomeNet income increased approximately $701,000, at%0to $7.6 million for 2012 from $6.9 million f@011. Earnings per diluted
share (diluted) were $0.28 per share for 2012, ewagpto $0.29 per diluted share for 2011. A keydiatnpacting the comparison of EPS
(diluted) for 2012 to EPS (diluted) for 2011 was #ffect of additional shares of the Company’s cemistock outstanding that were issued
during the Company’s fourth quarter 2011 stockrirfifg The impact of the stock offering increaseel Weighted average outstanding share
count by approximately 3.6 million shares for 2@bPnpared to 2011.

Adjusted EBITDA (which we define as net income befmterest, income taxes, stock-based compensatnohdepreciation and amortization)
increased by 21.1% to approximately $21.2 millionZ012 compared to $17.5 million for 2011. Thigpmwvement is consistent with the
factors mentioned above. See Reconciliation of IB&AP Financial Measures in Management’s Discusaiwh Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations for our reciiatodn of this calculation to measures under USABA

Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

This report contains certain non-GAAP financial swg&s, including, non-GAAP net income, non-GAAPratiag income, non-GAAP
revenue and adjusted EBITDA, which are used by g@meant in analyzing the Company’s financial resaittd ongoing operational
performance. These non-GAAP financial measuresldhmni be considered as a substitute for, or sap&yj measures of financial
performance which are prepared in accordance WBHGAAP and may be different from non-GAAP finanaiaasures used by other
companies.

In order to better assess the Company’s finanegllts, management believes that adjusted EBITCah igppropriate measure for evaluating
the operating performance of the Company becatsstad EBITDA reflects net income adjusted for riash and non-operating items.
Adjusted EBITDA is also used by many investors secdurities analysts to assess the Company’s réguitscurrent operations. Adjusted
EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure and shoubdl lme considered as a measure of financial perfocsander US GAAP. Because
adjusted EBITDA is not a measurement determinextaoordance with US GAAP, it is susceptible to vagytalculations. Accordingly,
adjusted EBITDA, as presented, may not be compatabdther similarly titted measures of other conipsa.

The Company understands that, although adjusted@ BEBlis frequently used by investors and securiéialysts in their evaluation of
companies, this measure has limitations as an icallyool, and you should not consider it in igada, or as a substitute for an analysis of the
Company’s results as reported under US GAAP. Famgte, adjusted EBITDA does not reflect cash exjieras, or future requirements for
capital expenditures or contractual commitmentdpés not reflect non-cash components of emplogegensation; it does not reflect change:
in, or cash requirements for, our working capie¢ds; and due to the Company’s utilization of fabend state net operating loss
carryforwards and other available tax deduction0hl, 2012, and 2013, actual cash income tax patgniniave been significantly less than the
tax provision recorded in accordance with US GAAR] income tax payments will continue to be leas the income tax provision until our
existing federal and state net operating loss ammards have been fully utilized or have expired.

Management compensates for the inherent limitatimssciated with using adjusted EBITDA through Idisare of such limitations,
presentation of our financial statements in acawcdavith US GAAP, and reconciliation of adjustedEBA to net income, the most directly
comparable US GAAP measure.
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As discussed elsewhere in this report, the Compampleted the acquisitions of DCI during June 2@2Med in October 2012, and BLG in
September 2013. In accordance with US GAAP repprguirements for fair value, we recorded a deferevenue write-down of $192,000
for DCI, $916,000 for Sy.Med, and $254,000 for BlX®Bese write-downs will result in lower revenueartiwould have otherwise been
recognized for such services.

In order to provide more accurate trends and coismas of the Company’s revenues, operating inc@meé,net income, management believes
that adding back the deferred revenue write-doveo@ated with fair value accounting for acquiredibhasses provides a better indication of
the ongoing performance of the Company. The revémuie acquired contracts is deferred and typigalcognized over a one year period, Sc
our US GAAP revenues for the one year period dffieracquisition will not reflect the full amount @venues that would have been reported |
the acquired deferred revenue was not written dimair value.

2013 2012 2011
GAAP net income $ 8,41¢ $ 7,64f $ 6,94¢
Interest incomt (263) (187) (51)
Interest expens 51 48 48
Income tax provisiol 6,42¢ 5,93: 4,40¢
Stock based compensation expe 1,45¢ 1,13¢ 78¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 7,852 6,66 5,412
Adjusted EBITDA $ 23,94( $ 21,24: $17,54¢
GAAP revenue: $132,27- $103,73. $82,06¢
Adjustment for deferred revenue w-down 83¢ 49( —
Non-GAAP revenue: $133,11: $104,22. $82,06¢
GAAP operating incom $ 14,66¢ $ 13,45¢ $11,33¢
Adjustment for deferred revenue w-down 83¢ 49( —
Non-GAAP operating incom $ 15,50¢ $ 13,94¢ $11,33¢
GAAP net income $ 8,41¢ $ 7,64¢ $ 6,94¢
Adjustment for deferred revenue w-down, net of ta; 47€ 27€ —
Non-GAAP net income $ 8,89/ $ 7,921 $ 6,94¢

FINANCIAL OUTLOOK FOR 2014

The Company provides projections and other forwaodting information in this “Financial Outlook f@&014” section within “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations.” This section contains mfamyardlooking statements, particulai
relating to the Company’s future financial performoa. These forwartboking statements are estimates based on infoomatirrently availab
to the Company, are made pursuant to the safe harbaisions of the Private Securities LitigatiorfBrm Act of 1995 and are subject to the
precautionary statements set forth in the intradadn Part | of this Annual Report on Form 10-Koab. Actual results are likely to differ, and
in the past have differed, materially from thosee@ast by the Company, depending on the outcormaraius factors, including, but not limit
to, those set forth in Item 1A, Risk Factors.

On March 3, 2014, the Company acquired all of theksof Health Care Compliance Strategies, Inc. Q3L for approximately $13.0 million
cash and 81,614 shares of its common stock. Takingonsideration the HCCS acquisition, the Conypaamticipates that consolidated
revenues for the full year 2014 will grow by 25 qget to 29 percent as compared to 2013, which teygnowth reflects the impact of the
deferred revenue write-down related to the HCCSuigdtpn. We anticipate revenue growth in the Worke Development Solutions segment,
which will include HCCS, to be in the 27 percenBtbpercent range, also reflecting the impact efdéferred revenue wrigewn related to tr
HCCS acquisition. We expect the Research/Patiepéiiance Solutions segment’s revenue to increasgppsoximately 18 percent to 22
percent, part of which growth includes revenuemftbe BLG acquisition which we closed in Septenttit3. The foregoing guidance does
not include the impact from any other transactithias we may complete during 2014.

We anticipate that the Company’s 2014 full-yearraprg income will decrease between two and elganent over full-year 2013. This
operating income estimated range includes the itgfadCCS, of which between $2.5 to $3.0 milliofates to the combined impact of
deferred revenue fair value write-downs, amort@abf intangibles, incremental investments in H&af&s, marketing, and product
development to drive future growth, and approxinya$d50,000 of transaction costs. Similar to oweraue guidance, this estimate does not
include the impact from any other transactions #®may complete during 2014.

We anticipate that our 2014 capital expenditurdshei between $9.0 million and $12.0 million. Wepexkt our effective tax rate to range
between 42 and 44 percent for the full-year of 2014
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SELECTED QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS

The following tables set forth selected statemehtsacome data for each of the eight quarters énggériod ended December 31, 2013. The
information for each quarter has been prepareth@same basis as the audited statements includebdnparts of this report and, in our
opinion, includes all adjustments, consisting diyarormal recurring adjustments, necessary foiirgof@sentation of the results of operations
for these periods. You should read this informationonjunction with HealthStream’s Consolidateddficial Statements and related notes
thereto included elsewhere in this report. The afreg results for any quarter are not necessardicative of the results to be expected in the
future.

Factors Affecting Quarterly Operating Results

Revenues from our subscriptitised products are recognized ratably over thecepbien term. Survey and research revenues aragteg by
seasonal factors resulting from the volume, timangd frequency of survey cycles.

Quarter Ended

March 31, September 3C December 31
June 30,

2013 2013 2013 2013
(In thousands, except per share date

STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:

Revenues, ne $29,64¢ $31,91¢ $ 33,65¢ $ 37,05(
Total operating costs and expen 26,47 27,811 29,78( 33,54
Income from operation 3,17: 4,10¢ 3,87¢ 3,50¢
Net income $ 1,941 $ 2,42 $  2,29¢ $  1,76(
Net income per sha®:

Basic $ 0.07 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢€

Diluted $ 0.07 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢
Weighted average shares of common stock outstan

Basic 26,34( 26,72. 27,08! 27,26¢

Diluted 27,40¢ 27,64¢ 27,73¢ 27,85¢

Quarter Ended

March 31, September 3¢ December 31
June 30,

2012 2012 2012 2012
(In thousands, except per share date

STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:

Revenues, ne $23,67¢ $25,84: $ 26,38( $ 27,83¢
Total operating costs and expen 21,33 21,80( 22,64 24,49
Income from operation 2,341 4,041 3,731 3,34¢
Net income $ 1,42( $ 2,421 $ 1,97 $ 1,821
Net income per sha®:

Basic $ 0.0f $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.07

Diluted $ 0.0t $ 0.0¢ $ 0.07 $ 0.07
Weighted average shares of common stock outstan

Basic 25,99¢ 26,127 26,17 26,21:

Diluted 27,33t 27,50: 27,59: 27,60(

(1) - Due to the nature of interim earnings per shaleutaions, the sum of quarterly earnings per shaneunts may not equal the reported
earnings per share for the full ye

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash provided by operating activities incredse83.8 million, or 16.7%, to $26.3 million durird®13 from $22.5 million during 2012. C
primary sources of cash were generated from recéipin the sales of our products and services.nlineber of days sales outstanding (DSO)
was 56 days for 2013 and 55 days for 2012. The @ompalculates DSO by dividing the average accowusivable balance (excluding
unbilled and other receivables) by average daignees for the year. The primary uses of cashrtd éwr operations include personnel
expenses, sales commissions, royalty payments, gratgrfor contract labor and other direct expensesaated with delivery of our products
and services, and general corporate expenses.

Net cash used in investing activities was approsahges15.0 million during 2013 and $59.0 millionrthg 2012. During 2013, the Compa
purchased $86.1 million of marketable securiti¢tizad $7.6 million (net of cash acquired) for agjtions, spent $4.3 million for capitalized
software development, purchased $4.4 million opprty and equipment, and made $0.3 million in narkatable equity investments. These
uses of cash were partially offset by maturitied sales of marketable securities of $87.7 millidaring 2012, the Company purchased $1:



million of marketable securities, utilized $9.9 Iwih (net of cash acquired) for acquisitions, sggh#t million for capitalized software
development, purchased $4.3 million of property aqdipment, and made $0.2 million in non-marketaljeity investments. These uses of
cash were partially offset by maturities of markétasecurities of $78.1 million.
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Cash provided by financing activities was approsxtehe$6.9 million during 2013 and $934,000 durir@l2. The primary source of cash from
financing activities for 2013 and 2012 includedgaeds (net of payroll taxes paid) of $3.2 milliod&$823,000, respectively, from the exer:
of employee stock options and issuance of RSUadftition, the Company recognized excess tax barfedin equity awards of $3.7 million
and $111,000 in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Revenues increased and operating income improvedtbe prior year, and our balance sheet reflextttipe working capital of $90.9 million
at December 31, 2013 compared to $83.3 millionetdbnber 31, 2012. The increase in working capitaiarily resulted from increases in
cash and investment balances and accounts receivettiDecember 31, 2013, the Company’s primary @®of liquidity was $108.2 million of
cash and cash equivalents and marketable secufiiesCompany also has a $20.0 million revolvireddrfacility loan agreement, all of whi
was available at December 31, 2013.

We believe that our existing cash and cash equitalenarketable securities, cash generated fromatipes, and available borrowings under
our revolving credit facility will be sufficient tmeet anticipated cash needs for working capitak product development and capital
expenditures for at least the next 12 months. Ghepast nine years, we have utilized our federdlsdate net operating loss carryforwards to
offset taxable income, therefore reducing our inedax liabilities. We anticipate our remaining nperating loss carryforwards will become
fully utilized over the next 12 to 24 months. Outual tax payments are expected to increase signifly once the net operating loss
carryforwards are fully utilized. As part of ourogrth strategy, we have recently completed seveqliaitions and we continue to review
possible acquisitions that complement our prodantsservices. We anticipate that future acquisiticimany, would be effected through a
combination of stock and cash consideration. Thgaisce of our stock as consideration for an ad@unsor to raise additional capital could
have a dilutive effect on earnings per share andtdcadversely affect our stock price. Our revolvargdit facility contains financial covenants
and availability calculations designed to set aimaxn leverage ratio of outstanding debt to equityerefore, if we were to borrow against our
revolving credit facility, our debt capacity woudé dependent on the covenant values at the tirherodwing. As of December 31, 2013, we
were in compliance with all covenants. The credd aapital markets have been experiencing extrestailty and disruption. There can be no
assurance that amounts available for borrowing uaderevolving credit facility will be sufficiertb consummate any possible acquisitions,
and we cannot assure you that if we need additimmehcing that it will be available on terms fagbte to us, or at all. Failure to generate
sufficient cash flow from operations or raise aibaial capital when required in sufficient amoumntsl @n terms acceptable to us could harm
business, financial condition and results of openst

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obgjations

The Company'’s off-balance sheet arrangements pitinzamsist of operating leases, contractual obiayes, and our revolving credit facility,
which is described further in Note 14 to the Conmysonsolidated financial statements containeeveffere in this report.

The following table presents a summary of futurécgated payments due by the Company under camgthobligations with firm minimum
commitments as of December 31, 2013, excluding anscalready recorded in the Consolidated Balane=tSHin thousands):

Payments due by perioc

Less than :
More than 5
year 1-3 years 3-5 year: years Total
Operating leases $ 2,66¢ $3,421 $ 50¢ $ — $6,591
Purchase obligatior 14z — — — 14z
Total $ 2,80 $3,42] $ 50t $ — $6,73:

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013@2nprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of AmswReclassified Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (ASU 201)3+0Rich is effective prospectively for public coempes for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2012. This new acdogstandard improves the reporting of reclasdifices out of accumulated other
comprehensive income (AOCI) by requiring an ertityeport the effect of significant reclassificaisoout of AOCI on the respective line items
in net income if the amount being reclassifieceiguired under GAAP to be reclassified in its etyite net income. For other amounts that are
not required under GAAP to be reclassified in tiegitirety to net income in the same reporting krém entity is required to cross-reference
other disclosures required under GAAP that proeidditional detail about those amounts. We adogtsdiew guidance on January 1, 2013
and the adoption did not have a material effeadanconsolidated financial statements.
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ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

The Company is exposed to market risk from chanmgegerest rates. We do not have any foreign cuayeexchange rate risk or commodity
price risk. As of December 31, 2013, the Compary/f@outstanding debt. We may become subject évdst rate market risk associated with
any future borrowings under our revolving credtility. The interest rate under the revolving ctddtility is based on 30 Day LIBOR plus a
margin of either 175 or 200 basis points determinegtcordance with a pricing grid. We are expdseaharket risk with respect to our cash
and investment balances, which approximated $108l@n at December 31, 2013. Assuming a hypotlati®% decrease in interest rates,
interest income from cash and investments wouldedese on an annualized basis by approximately $64,0

The Company’s investment policy and strategy isi$ecl on investing in highly rated securities, whtha objective of minimizing the potential
risk of principal loss. The Company’s policy limitse amount of credit exposure to any single isanérsets limits on the average portfolio
maturity.

The above market risk discussion and the estimeatealints presented are forward-lookgtgtements of market risk assuming the occurref
certain adverse market conditions. Actual resalthé future may differ materially from those pidg as a result of actual developments ii
market.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
HealthStream, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of HealthStream, Inc. as of Decembe2@®li3 and 2012, and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehenso@ie, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for edi¢he three years in the period ended
December 31, 2013. These financial statementsareesponsibility of the Company’s management. i@sponsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those standard:s
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finataieiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenenelaas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of
HealthStream, Inc. at December 31, 2013 and 201i®Rtle consolidated results of its operations &édash flows for each of the three years ii
the period ended December 31, 2013, in conformitly W.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), HealthStream,
Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting @sDecember 31, 2013, based on criteria estaldighmternal Control — Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifriee Treadway Commission (1992 framework) andreport dated
March 4, 2014 expressed an unqualified opinionetbier

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Nashville, Tennesse
March 4, 2014
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
HealthStream, Inc.

We have audited HealthStream, Inc.’s internal adrver financial reporting as of December 31, 20&8ed on criteria establishedmternal
Control — Integrated Framewoiiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway Commission (1992 framework) (the
COSO criteria). HealthStream, Inc.’s managemergsponsible for maintaining effective internal dohbver financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting included in the accompagyManagement's Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibilet to express an opinion on the Company’s infezaatrol over financial reporting based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8d&/nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenalteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal coraxer financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and etinagutihe design and operating effectiveness ofiiralecontrol based on the assessed risk, anc
performing such other procedures as we considezeessary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis for ou
opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableamesuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statets:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftajmeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsafdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatg@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely detectfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, HealthStream, Inc. maintained, limeaterial respects, effective internal controkofinancial reporting as of December 31,
2013, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the 2013
consolidated financial statements of HealthStrdam,and our report dated March 4, 2014 expreseachgqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Nashville, Tennesse
March 4, 2014
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands)

December 31

December 31

2013 2012
ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivale $ 59,537 $ 41,36
Marketable securitie 48,65¢ 51,95:
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubéfttounts of $211 and $142 at December 31, 201.

2012, respectivel 25,31« 15,34¢
Accounts receivabl- unbilled 1,392 1,16
Deferred tax assets, curre — 2,45¢
Prepaid royalties, net of amortizati 8,851 3,73¢
Other prepaid expenses and other current a 3,36¢ 2,26¢

Total current asse 147,12 118,29:
Property and equipmer
Equipment 21,63 18,10¢
Leasehold improvemen 5,521 5,05(
Furniture and fixture 3,85¢ 3,36¢
31,00¢ 26,52¢
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (21,96¢) (18,706
9,03¢ 7,82(
Capitalized software development, net of accumdlateortization of $13,910 and $10,987 at December 3
2013 and 2012, respective 11,071 9,73:
Goodwill 35,74¢ 29,29¢
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortizaifc$l1,389 and $10,036 at December 31, 2013 ang,201
respectively 8,87( 8,80¢
Other asset 73¢ 581
Total asset $ 212,59 $ 174,52
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 2,311 $ 1,057
Accrued royaltiet 8,43¢ 5,031
Accrued liabilities 5,50z 4,671
Accrued compensation and related expe 1,614 1,121
Deferred tax liabilities, currel 181 —
Deferred revenu 38,16¢ 23,14¢
Total current liabilities 56,21: 35,03:
Deferred tax liabilities, noncurre 6,17: 6,47¢
Other long term liabilitie: 77€ 82¢
Commitments and contingenci — —
Shareholder equity:
Common stock, no par value, 75,000 shares autligr2zze327 and 26,233 shares issued and outstanding

at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respecti 166,88t 158,02(
Accumulated defici (17,429 (25,847
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li (32) 18

Total shareholde’ equity 149,43: 132,19¢
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity $ 212,59 $ 174,52

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenues, net
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and ametitin)
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
Other general and administrative exper
Depreciation and amortizatic
Total operating costs and expen
Income from operation
Other income (expense), r
Income before income tax provisi
Income tax provisiol
Net income

Net income per shar
Basic

Diluted

Weighted average shares of common stock outstan
Basic

Diluted

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements.

35

For the Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
$132,27- $103,73:  $82,06¢
55,60¢ 41,65¢  31,06¢
11,75 8,61( 7,47¢
24,05 19,89: 16,01
18,34: 13,45 10,76(
7,85: 6,66 5,41z
117,60¢ 90,27  70,72¢
14,66¢ 13,45¢ 11,33
17€ 11¢ 10
14,84: 13577 11,34
6,42/ 5,937 4,40¢
$ 841t $ 7,648 $ 6,94
$ 031 $ 02 $ 031
$ 03 $ 02 $ 0.2¢
26,85 26,12¢ 22,44t
27,66 27,500 23,74¢
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands)

For the Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011

Net Income $8,41¢ $7,645F $6,94¢
Other comprehensive income, net of ta:

Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable secur (49 25 2

Total other comprehensive income (lo (49 25 2

Comprehensive incorn $8,36¢ $7,67C $6,94C

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(In thousands)

Common Stock

Accumulated

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive

Total
Shareholders’

Shares Amount Deficit Income (Loss) Equity
Balance at December 31, 2010 21,80¢ $ 97,22% $ (40,43) $ (5) $ 56,79:
Net income — — 6,944 — 6,944
Comprehensive los — — — 2 ()
Stock based compensati — 78¢€ — — 78¢
Tax benefits from equity awar: — 21 — — 21
Common stock issued under stock plans, net of share
withheld for employee taxe 503 1,24z — — 1,24:
Issuance of common sto 3,58¢ 55,13! — — 55,13:
Balance at December 31, 20 25,89¢ 154,40¢ (33,48)) @) 120,91!
Net income — — 7,64t — 7,64t
Comprehensive incorr — — — 25 25
Issuance of common stock in acquisitic 56 1,541 — — 1,541
Stock based compensati — 1,13¢ — — 1,13¢
Tax benefits from equity awar: — 111 — — 111
Common stock issued under stock plans, net of share
withheld for employee taxe 281 823 — — 823
Balance at December 31, 20 26,23 158,02( (25,847 18 132,19¢
Net income — — 8,41¢ — 8,41¢
Comprehensive los — — — (49) (49)
Issuance of common stock in acquisit 15 534 — — 534
Stock based compensati — 1,45¢ — — 1,45¢
Tax benefits from equity awar: — 3,722 — — 3,722
Common stock issued under stock plans, net of shar
withheld for employee taxe 1,07¢ 3,15¢ — — 3,15¢
Balance at December 31, 20 27,32% $166,88¢ $ (17,429 $ (31) $ 149,43

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigemn by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Deferred income taxe
Stock based compensation expe
Excess tax benefits from equity awa
Provision for doubtful accoun
Loss on no-marketable equity investmer
Other
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acqaisiti
Accounts and unbilled receivabl
Prepaid royaltie
Other prepaid expenses and other current a
Other asset
Accounts payabl
Accrued royaltiet
Accrued liabilities, accrued compensation and eglaxpenses, and other long-
term liabilities
Deferred revenu
Net cash provided by operating activit
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquir
Proceeds from sales of marketable secut
Proceeds from maturities of marketable secur
Purchases of marketable securi
Investments in nc-marketable equity investmer
Payments associated with capitalized software dewnetnt
Purchases of property and equipir
Net cash used in investing activiti
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of common st
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti
Taxes paid related to net settlement of equity da
Excess tax benefits from equity awa
Payments on capital lease obligatit
Net cash provided by financing activiti

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paic

Income taxes pai

NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Issuance of common stock in connection with actjarss

Acquisition of content rights in exchange for figigervice:

For the Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
$ 8416 $ 7648 $ 694
7,85. 6,661 5,417
2,50¢ 5,601 4,02
1,45¢ 1,13¢ 78¢
(3,729) (111) (21)
11F 12C 50

37 16 —
1,66( 722 83
(10,056 1,227 (4,997
(5,119 (329) (26%)
(1,207 (537) (282)
108 (15) 217
1,25¢ (1,529) 211
3,39¢ 1,57¢ 1,45(
4,82: 542 124
14,76: (19¢) 6,01¢
26,28: 22 53( 19,75¢
(7,560) (9,901) —
5,06: — 2,221
82,66 78,07 8,13t
(86,139  (118,17¢ (17,289
(300) (250) —
(4,267) (4,43F) (6,06%)
(4,442) (4,316) (4,115)
(14,98 (59,009 (17,109
— — 55,13
3,31¢ 822 1,24%
(164) — —
3,72z 111 21
— — ®
6,87¢ 934 56,38¢
18,17: (35,53 59,03¢
41,36 76,90« 17,86¢
$59537 $ 4136F  $ 76,90
$ 51 3 61 $ 35
$ 371 $ 4271 $ 387
$ 534 $ 1541 $ —
$ — $ 50C $ —

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity and Segments

HealthStream, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporate#!990 as a Tennessee corporation and is hedadoein Nashville, Tennessee. We
operate our business in two segments: HealthSti#ankforce Development Solutions and HealthStrearselBech/Patient Experience
Solutions. Our Workforce Development products cstnsf SaaS-based services and subscription-basgtbas to meet the ongoing training,
certification, assessment and development neetliedfealthcare community. These solutions provddéyer and track computer based
education for our customers in the United Statesutiih our software-as-a-service (SaaS) model. higaitam Research/Patient Experience
products offer healthcare organizations a wide easfgquality and satisfaction surveys, consultiagyiges, analyses of survey results, and ¢
research-based services.

Recognition of Revenue

Revenues are derived from providing services thaug SaaS-based workforce development platforrdymis, courseware subscriptions,
provision of survey and research services, pradessiservices, content maintenance, custom coursaseavelopment and other education and
training services.

The Company recognizes revenue when it is reabizedalizable and earned. The Company consideesitevrealized or realizable and earne
when persuasive evidence of an arrangement egistes are fixed or determinable, services andymrtsdare provided to the customer and
collectability is probable or reasonably assured.

Revenue recognized from software and other arraagesis allocated to each element of the arrangeb@sed on the relative fair values of
the elements. While elements include software prtsdand post contract customer support, the fdirevaf each element is based on objective
evidence specific to the vendor. If fair value catrime determined for each element of the arrangerabmevenue from the arrangement is
deferred until fair value can be determined orlwaitielements of the arrangement are deliveredcarstbmer acceptance has occurred. Sales
the Company’s Saaased workforce development platform products mhelaustomer support, implementation services, @iking; therefor
all revenues are deferred until the SaaS-basedipr@glimplemented, at which time revenues aregeized ratably over the subscription
service period. In the event that circumstancesipechich give rise to uncertainty regarding théezibility of contracted amounts, revenue
recognition is suspended until such uncertaintgs®lved. Fees for these services are billed dweeé monthly, quarterly, or annual basis.

Revenues derived from the delivery of servicesufhothe Company’s SaaS-based workforce developphetfiobrm products and courseware
subscriptions are recognized ratably over the wrthe subscription service agreement or over ts@itical usage period, if usage typically
differs from the subscription period. Other tramirevenues are generally recognized upon the caimplef training.

Revenues derived from the license of installedwsfe products, associated with the Sy.Med prodactsrecognized upon shipment or
installation of the software. Software support amantenance revenues are recognized ratably ogdgetm of the related agreement.

Revenues recognized from the Company’s survey esgbrch services are determined using both thegiopal performance method and the
completed contract method. Revenues are genemifed over the estimated survey cycle, which tylgicanges from less than one month to
up to five months. The survey cycle is generalltiated based on the receipt of the first survespomse and runs through provision of related
survey reports to the customer. If survey resutsnat available to the customer during the sufiggling cycle, revenues are recognized at
time of report delivery. Revenues for coaching eadsulting engagements are recognized using ttpopional performance method over the
term of the underlying contract. Fees for survayises are billed upon initiation of the survey leyavith progress billings made throughout
the survey cycle. Fees for coaching and consuéiimgagements are billed upon initiation of the elegaent with progress billings throughout
the term of the contract.

Revenues from professional services, content nmaamiee, and custom courseware development servieesa@gnized using a percentage of
completion method based on labor hours, which spoerd to the completion of performance milestomesdeliverables. All other revenues
are recognized as the related services are pertbomproducts are delivered. Fees for these serdoe generally billed at project initiation &
upon completion of various milestones.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tomants of the Company and its subsidiaries, alflith are wholly-owned. All
inter-company accounts and transactions have Haeim&ted in consolidation.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetets in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assusfiit affect the amounts reported in the findrsteements and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from those estimated anch differences could be material to the codat#id financial statements.

Cash Equivalents
The Company considers cash equivalents to be uictest highly liquid investments with initial matties of less than three months.

Marketable Securities

Marketable securities are classified as availatneséle and are stated at fair market value, wighuinrealized gains and losses, net of tax,
reported in other comprehensive income (loss) erattompanying consolidated balance sheets. Reég&as and losses and declines in
market value judged to be other than temporanngastments in marketable securities are includédt@rest and other income on the
accompanying consolidated statements of income cdheof securities sold is based on the spedéatification method. Interest and
dividends on securities classified as availableséde are included in other income (expense) oathempanying consolidated statements of
income. Premiums and discounts are amortized tweclife of the related available for sale secuagyan adjustment to yield using the effective
interest method.

Accounts Receivable-Unbilled

Accounts receivable-unbilled represents the follmyvil) revenue earned and recognized on contractaiated for using the proportional
performance method for which invoices have not lggsrerated or contractual billing dates have nehlyeached; and 2) the difference
between billings for contracts containing escalgiedng over the term of the agreement and thegeition of revenue ratably over the
subscription period.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue represents amounts, which havelikbed or collected in advance of revenue rectigmj and is recognized as the revenue
recognition criteria are met. The Company typicailyoices customers in quarterly, bi-annual, oruatinstallments.

Prepaid Royalties

Prepaid royalties represents advance paymentsiassbwith the sale of third party products, susttaurseware subscriptions. Royalties are
typically paid in advance at the commencement efrlvenue cycle, or periodically throughout theerate cycle, such as quarterly, bi-annual,
or annual installments. Royalty payments are amedtover the term of the underlying contracts, Wigjenerally range from 12 to 36 months,
in order to match the direct royalty costs to thme period the subscription revenue is recogni&etbrtization of royalties is included under
the caption “cost of revenues (excluding depremmasind amortization)” in the accompanying constéidastatements of income.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company estimates its allowance for doubtfabaats using a specific identification method. Mgeraent determines the allowance for
doubtful accounts on a case-by-case basis, bastttb dacts and circumstances surrounding each aftgruncollectible receivable. An
allowance is also maintained for accounts thahatespecifically identified that may become uncdiilele in the future. Uncollectible
receivables are writteoff in the period management believes it has exieausvery opportunity to collect payment from thistomer. Bad de!
expense is recorded when events or circumstandesta an additional allowance is required basetherCompany’s specific identification
approach.

Changes in the allowance for doubtful accountstaacamounts charged to bad debt expense for the gaded December 31, were as follows
(in thousands):

Allowance Balance a Charged to Costs an Allowance Balance a

Beginning of Period Expenses Write -offs End of Period
2013 $ 142 $ 11t $ (46 $ 211
2012 $ 14¢ $ 12C $ (127) $ 142
2011 $ 157 $ 50 $ (59 $ 14¢

Capitalized Software Development

Capitalized software development is stated on #sistof cost, and is presented net of accumulatedtization. The Company capitalizes c«
incurred during the software development phas@fojects when such costs are material. These am®etanortized using the strai-line



method, generally ranging between one to five yeie Company capitalized approximately $4.3 milland $4.4 million during 2013 and
2012, respectively. Maintenance and operating @stexpensed as incurred. As of December 31, 2042012, there were no capitalized
internal development costs for computer softwareltged for resale.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would lmeireed to sell an asset or paid to transfer alitglin the principal or most advantageous ma
in an orderly transaction between market partidipahthe measurement date. The fair value hieygrdbritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used in measuring fair value. Therghmee levels to the fair value hierarchy basedherréliability of inputs, as follows:

Level1 - Observable inputs that reflect quoted prices (wstd) for identical assets or liabilities in aetimarkets
Level z - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Leviidt are observable for the asset or liabilityhesi directly or indirectly
Level Z - Unobservable inputs in which little or no marketadexists, therefore requiring the Company to dgvéts own assumption

The Company evaluates assets and liabilities sutgdair value measurements on a recurring basitetermine the appropriate level at which
to classify them for each reporting period. Thitedmination requires significant judgments to belenby the Company.

At December 31, 2013, the fair value measuremewtuais for assets consisted of marketable secuwitigsh are classified as available for
sale. The carrying amounts reported in the cona@itibalance sheets approximate the fair valueeo€bmpany’s marketable securities basec
on quoted market prices or alternative pricing sesrand models utilizing market observable inpdt©ecember 31, 2013 and 2012, the
Company did not have any financial liabilities thagre subject to fair value measurements.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated on the basisstf Depreciation and amortization are providedhenstraight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives, except for assatder capital leases and leasehold improvemeiishvare amortized over the shorter of the
estimated useful life or their respective leasmtddepreciation and amortization of property andigapent totaled $3.3 million and $2.6
million for the years ended December 31, 2013 drP2respectively.

Years
Furniture and fixtures 5-10
Equipment 35

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase priee fawr value of net tangible assets acquired. Company evaluates goodwill for impairm
at the reporting unit level by assessing whethisrritore likely than not that the fair value ofegorting unit exceeds its carrying value. If this
assessment concludes that is more likely thanhadthe fair value of a reporting unit exceedségying value, then goodwill is not conside
impaired and no further impairment testing is reggii Conversely, if the assessment concludesttigairiore likely than not that the fair value
of a reporting unit is less than its carrying valagoodwill impairment test is performed to congptire fair value of the reporting unit to its
carrying value. The Company determines fair valughe reporting units using both income and mablkeeted models. The Company will
perform its goodwill impairment test whenever egamt changes in facts or circumstances indicatentif@airment may exist, and at least
annually during the fourth quarter.

As of December 31, 2013 intangible assets with neimg unamortized balances include contract rigimd customer relationships, internally-
developed technology and patents, non-competitpeeaments, and trade names. These intangible assatensidered to have definite useful
lives and are being amortized on a straight lin@sbaver periods typically ranging between five tenyears. The weighted average
amortization period for definite lived intangiblesets as of December 31, 2013 was 8.7 years. Ihtaragsets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in facts or circumssaincécate that the carrying amount of the assetg mot be recoverable. There were no
impairments identified or recorded for the yeardeshDecember 31, 2013, 2012, or 2011.

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets to be held for use are reviewe@vents or changes in facts and circumstancés,imi@rnally and externally, which may
indicate that an impairment of long-lived assetsl ier use is present. The Company measures angiimpnt using observable market values
or discounted future cash flows from the relatadjitived assets. The cash flow estimates and digaaes incorporate management’s best
estimates, using appropriate and customary assongpdind projections at the date of evaluation. laneent periodically evaluates whether
the carrying value of long-lived assets, includongperty and equipment, capitalized software dgueknt, other assets and intangible assets
will be recoverable. There were no impairments fified or recorded for the years ended Decembef313, 2012, or 2011.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Other Assets
Other assets are comprised of the long-term podia@ontent development fees and non-marketabléyeiquestments.

Non-Marketable Equity Investments

Non-marketable equity investments are accounted fiogube equity method when the Company can exesiiggficant influence over the
investee. Investments for which the Company isatdd to exercise significant influence over theestee are accounted for under the cost
method. The proportionate share of income or las® fequity method investments are recorded undecdption “other income (expense), net
in the accompanying consolidated statements ohigco

Financial Instruments

The Company has financial instruments, includinghcand cash equivalents, accounts receivable, atcoeceivable-unbilled, accounts
payable, accrued liabilities, and deferred reveiihe. carrying amounts of these financial instruraeqproximate fair value because of the
short term maturity or short term nature of sudtriments. Marketable securities approximate faline based on quoted market prices, see
Note 4.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using the assdtaility method, whereby deferred tax assets éatillties are determined based on the
temporary differences between the financial statérapd tax bases of assets and liabilities measatrick rates that will be in effect for the
year in which the differences are expected to atte@ble income. Management evaluates all avalabidence, both positive and negative
determine whether, based on the weight of thatezwid, a valuation allowance is needed. Futurezedan of the tax benefit of an existing
deductible temporary difference or carryforwardn#ttely depends on the existence of sufficientliéx@ncome of the appropriate character
within the carryback or carryforward period avaitabnder the tax law. There are four possible siof taxable income that may be available
under the tax law to realize a tax benefit for drithle temporary differences and carryforwardsfutjire reversals of existing taxable
temporary differences, 2) future taxable incomdwesige of reversing temporary differences and darwards, 3) taxable income in prior
carryback year(s) if carryback is permitted undhertbx law, and 4) tax-planning strategies thatldiatinecessary, be implemented to realize
deductible temporary differences or carryforwarderpo their expiration. Management reviews thalimbility of its deferred tax assets each
reporting period to identify whether any signifitahanges in circumstances or assumptions havereccthat could materially affect the
realizability of deferred tax assets. As of Decenfife 2013, the Company had established a valuatiowance of $1.3 million for the portion
of its net deferred tax assets that are not mkedylithan not expected to be realized.

The Company accounts for income tax uncertaintsisgua more-likely-than-not recognition threshoéséd on the technical merits of the tax
position taken. Tax positions that meet the mdtelithan-not recognition threshold are measureatdter to determine the tax benefit to be
recognized in the financial statements. The Comgaypgnses any penalties or interest associatedaxithbligations as general and
administrative expenses and interest expense,ciggly.

Other Long Term Liabilities

Other long term liabilities represent the defemet liability associated with an operating leasedffice space in Nashville, Tennessee as wel
as deferred service credits (see Note 9).

Advertising

The Company expenses the costs of advertisingcasrad. Advertising expense for the years endece®éer 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 was
approximately $408,000, $349,000, and $251,00pects/ely.

Shipping and Handling Costs
Shipping and handling costs that are associatddmit products and services are included in costw#nues.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividieggt income available to common shareholderdperiod by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the@geBiluted earnings per share is computed by digithe net income for the period by
the weighted average number of common and commuoivagnt shares outstanding during the period. Comequivalent shares, composed
of incremental common shares issuable upon theiseenf stock options, are included in dilutedinebme per share to the extent these shar
are dilutive. Common equivalent shares that havargirdilutive effect on diluted net income per ghhave been excluded from the calculatior
of diluted weighted average shares outstandinghtoyears ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Concentrations of Credit Risk and Significant Custaners

The Company places its temporary excess cash meess in high quality, short-term money marketrinstents. At times, such investments
may be in excess of the FDIC insurance limits.

The Company sells its products and services tmuarcompanies in the healthcare industry thataaatéd in the United States. We perform
ongoing credit evaluations of our customers’ firahcondition and generally require no collateraini customers. The Company did not have
any single customer representing over 10% of netmees during 2013, 2012, or 2011.

Stock Based Compensation

As of December 31, 2013, the Company maintainsstwok based compensation plans, which are desdribgdte 12. The Company accou
for stock based compensation using the fair-vahset method for costs related to share-based paynireriuding stock options and restricted
share units. The Company uses the Black Scholésopticing model for calculating the fair valueation awards issued under its stock
based compensation plan. The Company measures oeatjpm cost of restricted share units based ooltdsing fair market value of the
Company’s stock on the date of grant. Stock basetbensation cost is measured at the grant dated lmasthe fair value of the award that is
ultimately expected to vest, and is recognizednasxgense over the requisite service period. Thagamy recognizes tax benefits from stock
based compensation if an excess tax benefit izeshlExcess tax benefits are recorded as an seteecommon stock when realized.

Newly Issued Accounting Standards

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013d@@nprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of AmtswReclassified Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (ASU 201)3+0Rich is effective prospectively for public coempes for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2012. This new acdogistandard improves the reporting of reclasdifices out of accumulated other
comprehensive income (AOCI) by requiring an entityeport the effect of significant reclassificaisoout of AOCI on the respective line items
in net income if the amount being reclassifieceiguired under GAAP to be reclassified in its emyite net income. For other amounts that are
not required under GAAP to be reclassified in tiegitirety to net income in the same reporting krém entity is required to cross-reference
other disclosures required under GAAP that proeidditional detail about those amounts. We adoptsdiew guidance on January 1, 2013
and the adoption did not have a material effeadanconsolidated financial statements.

2. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue up to 75 milibares of common stock. The number of common slissaed and outstanding as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012 was approximately 2illidmand 26.2 million, respectively.

Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue up to 10 miliibares of preferred stock in one or more serggnh the relative voting powers,
designations, preferences, rights and qualificatitimitations or restrictions, and other termghesBoard of Directors may fix in providing for
the issuance of such series, without any vote tioraof the shareholders. During 2000, all outstagdhares of preferred stock were converte
into common stock in connection with our initialpie offering (IPO). There have been no sharesrefepred stock outstanding since our IPO.
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3. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation aiz and diluted earnings per share for the theaesyended December 31, 2013 (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

2013 2012 2011
Numerator:
Net income $ 8,41¢ $ 7,64¢ $ 6,94«
Denominator
Weightec-average shares outstand 26,85 26,12¢ 22,44t
Effect of dilutive share 81C 1,37¢ 1,30z
Weightec-average diluted shar 27,66: 27,50° 23,74¢
Basic earnings per she $ 0.31 $ 0.2¢ $ 0.31
Diluted earnings per sha $ 0.3 $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢

Potentially dilutive shares representing approxatyaf 0,000, 105,000, and 247,000 shares of comnuak $or 2013, 2012, and 2011,
respectively, were excluded from the calculatiowlibited earnings per share because their effeatdudeave been anti-dilutive.

4. MARKETABLE SECURITIES

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the fair value afketable securities, which were all classified @a&ilable for sale, included the following
thousands):

December 31, 201

Unrealizer Unrealize:
Adjusted Cos Gains Losses Fair Value
Level 2:
Certificates of depos $ 2,26( $ — $ — $ 2,26(
Corporate debt securitis 46,43( — (31) 46,39¢
Subtotal 48,69( — (31) 48,65¢
Total $ 48,69( $ — $ (3 $48,65¢
December 31, 201
Unrealizer Unrealize:
Adjusted Cos Gains Losses Fair Value
Level 1:
Mutual funds $ 5,04: $ 30 $ — $ 5,07-
Level 2:
Certificates of depos 2,25¢ — — 2,25¢
Commercial pape 3,122 1 — 3,12z
Corporate debt securiti 27,01° 1 (17) 27,00:
U.S. government securitit 14,49¢ 3 — 14,50:
Subtotal 46,89: 5 (17 46,88(
Total $ 51,93 $ 35 $ (17) $51,95:

The carrying amounts reported in the consolidatddrize sheet approximate fair value based on quo#eket prices or alternative pricing
sources and models utilizing market observabletsipAs of December 31, 2013, the Company doesarwider any of its marketable
securities to be other than temporarily impairedriby 2013, the Company recorded realized gairsppfoximately $5,000 from sales of
marketable securities. All investments in marketadcurities are classified as a current assdéteohalance sheet because the underlying
securities mature within one year from the balastwmet date.
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5. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

On June 29, 2012, the Company acquired all oftihekof Decision Critical, Inc., (DCI) an AustingXas based company that specializes in
learning and competency management products fae-aewe hospitals. The Company acquired DCI tdh&rradvance its suite of workforce
development solutions. The consideration paid f6f Eonsisted of approximately $3.4 million in casid 22,124 shares of our common stock
Also, the Company may make additional paymentabu$300,000, contingent upon achievement of irefil@ancial targets and business
outcomes within a three year period after the olpsiate. As of December 31, 2013, approximate\6¥IOD of these contingent payments |
been paid to the DCI shareholders. The Companyriedwapproximately $203,000 in transaction cosseeiated with the DCI acquisition,
which are included on the accompanying consolidatattments of income under the caption “other gém@ad administrative.” In allocating
the purchase price, the Company recorded approaiyn®2.9 million of goodwill, $1.5 million of ideiftable intangible assets, $291,000 of net
tangible assets and $456,000 of deferred tax fiiegsil The goodwill balance is primarily attributelassembled workforce, expanded market
opportunities from DCI's workforce development puots, and expected synergies from integrating D@iéglucts into our platform. The
goodwill balance is not deductible for U.S. incotae purposes. The net tangible assets include réefeevenue, which in accordance with

US GAAP, was adjusted down from a book value of8$3d0 to an estimated fair value of $356,000. Téferded revenue recorded represents
the estimated fair value of the contractual obl@atssumed as of the acquisition date. The $192y0e-down of deferred revenue resulted
in lower revenues than would have otherwise beeogmized for such services. The results of oparatfor DCI have been included in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements froendhte of acquisition, and are included in the th&iteam Workforce Development
Solutions segment.

On October 19, 2012, the Company acquired all ®fstiock of Sy.Med Development, Inc. (Sy.Med), afBm®od, Tennessee based company
that specializes in credentialing related softwaaucts for healthcare providers. The Company ieedby.Med to further advance its suite
workforce development solutions. The considerapiaitl for Sy.Med consisted of approximately $7.4lionlin cash and 34,060 shares of our
common stock. The Company may make additional paysref up to $1.5 million, contingent upon achieesinof certain financial targets a
business outcomes within a two year period afterctbsing date. As of December 31, 2013, approxm&625,000 of these contingent
payments have been paid to the Sy.Med shareholBeesCompany incurred approximately $165,000 inda&tion costs associated with the
Sy.Med acquisition, which are included on the agoanying consolidated statements of income undecapéon “other general and
administrative.” In allocating the purchase prites Company recorded approximately $5.4 milliogoddwill, $6.5 million of identifiable
intangible assets, $294,000 of net tangible assets$2.8 million of deferred tax liabilities. Theagiwill balance is primarily attributed to
assembled workforce, additional market opportusitieSy.Med’s credentialing software, and expestgtergies from integrating Sy.Med’s
products into our platform. The goodwill balancedg deductible for U.S. income tax purposes. Tétgtangible assets include deferred
revenue, which was adjusted down from a book vaful.1 million to an estimated fair value of $22%). The $916,000 write-down of
deferred revenue resulted in lower revenues thardimave otherwise been recognized for such seviliee results of operations for Sy.Med
have been included in the Company’s consolidateghfiial statements from the date of acquisitiod,ae included in the HealthStream
Workforce Development Solutions segment.

On September 9, 2013, the Company acquired sulzhamtl of the assets of Baptist Leadership Gr¢BpG), a Pensacola, Florida based
company that provides consulting services focusepatient-centered performance excellence in hesigh The Company acquired BLG to
strengthen its Research/Patient Experience Sokititime consideration paid for BLG consisted of agpnately $7.4 million in cash (taking
into account the working capital adjustment) an@®36 shares of our common stock. The Company iedupproximately $145,000 in
transaction costs associated with the acquisitidrich are included on the accompanying consolidatattments of income under the caption
“other general and administrative.” In allocatihg tpurchase price, the Company recorded approxiyrs#e3 million of goodwill, $1.6 million
of identifiable intangible assets, and $28,000eiftangible assets. The goodwill balance is pripattributed to the assembled workforce,
additional market opportunities from BLG’s consuifiservices, and expected synergies from integr&lrG into the operations of the
HealthStream Research/Patient Experience Solusiegiment. The goodwill balance is deductible for.lih€ome tax purposes. The net
tangible assets include deferred revenue, whichasiasted down from a book value of $508,000 testimated fair value of $254,000. The
$254,000 write-down of deferred revenue resultelduer revenues than would have otherwise beergrezed for such services. The results
of operations for BLG have been included in the @any’s consolidated financial statements from thte @f acquisition, and are included in
the HealthStream Research/Patient Experience Sofusegment.

45



Table of Contents

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

6. GOODWILL

Goodwill is evaluated for impairment at least arlyu® determine whether it is more likely than nioat the fair value of the reporting units
exceed their carrying value. If this assessmentlodes that is more likely than not that the failue of a reporting unit exceeds its carrying
value, then goodwill is not considered impaired andurther impairment testing is required. Quél factors are considered for this
assessment, such as, financial performance, indastr market comparables, and other factors affgdtie reporting unit. If the assessment
concludes that it is more likely than not that thie value of a reporting unit is less than itsrgarg value, a goodwill impairment test is
performed to compare the fair value of the repgrtinit to its carrying value. The Company determifegr value of the reporting units using
both income and market based models. Under thed®d® the technique used to determine fair vaisensitive to estimates and assump
associated with cash flow from operations andritswh, discount rates, and reporting unit termiredles. The Company performs its annual
impairment evaluation of goodwill during the fougharter of each year and as changes in factsiendnstances indicate impairment exists.
During the annual impairment evaluation in the fouquarter of 2013 and 2012, the results of ouesmrent indicated goodwill was not
impaired.

During 2013, the Company acquired Baptist Leadpr&rbup, and during 2012, the Company acquireddi@tiCritical, Inc. and Sy.Med
Development, Inc. The changes in the carrying arnofigoodwill for the years ended December 31, 2818 2012 are as follows (in
thousands):

Research/Patien

Workforce

Developmen Experience Total
Balance at January 1, 2013 $ 11,45¢ $ 17,84( $29,29¢
Acquisition of Sy.Med Development, In 13z — 13z
Acquisition of Baptist Leadership Grol — 6,314 6,314
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 11,59: $ 24,15¢ $35,74¢

Research/Patien

Workforce

Developmen Experience Total
Balance at January 1, 2012 $ 3,30 $ 17,84( $21,14°
Acquisition of Sy.Med Development, In 5,291 5,291
Acquisition of Decision Critical, Inc 2,861 — 2,861
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 11,45¢ $ 17,84( $29,29¢

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

All intangible assets are considered to have fin#eful lives. Customer related intangibles arersizesl over their estimated useful lives
ranging from eight to ten years. Other intangilslseds include non-competition agreements, techgaaod patents, and trade names, and are
being amortized over periods ranging from five itwenyears. Amortization of intangible assets wazraximately $1.5 million, $1.1 million,
and $0.9 million, for the years ended Decembe2813, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Identifiable intangible assets are comprised offttlewing (in thousands):

As of December 31, 201 As of December 31, 201
Accumulated Accumulated
Gross Amount Amortization Net Gross Amount Amortization Net
Customer related $ 16,88¢ $ (10,14%) $6,74¢ $ 1561¢ $ (8,969 $6,65(
Other 3,37( (1,248  2,12¢ 3,220 (1,06  2,15¢
Total $ 20,25¢ $ (11,389 $8,87C $ 18,847 $ (10,030 $8,80¢

The expected future annual amortization expensthéoyears ending December 31, is as follows @ushands):

2014 $1,56¢
2015 1,211
2016 1,12
2017 1,092
2018 99C
Thereaftel 2,88¢

Total $8,87(

46



Table of Contents

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

8. COLLABORATIVE ARRANGEMENT

The Company participates in a collaborative arramg®, SimVentured | with Laerdal Medical A/S (Lesrifledical). The Company
receives 50 percent of the profits or losses geeeifaom this collaborative arrangement. The paurtiel not form a separate legal entity as par
of the collaborative arrangement; therefore, then@any accounts for SimVentures as a collaboratirengement in accordance with
applicable accounting guidance. For the year emmémber 31, 2013, the Company recorded approxiyrd2e3 million of revenues and $:
million of expenses related to the collaborativeagement. For the year ended December 31, 204 Zdmpany recorded approximately $1.7
million of revenues and $1.7 million of expensdate to the collaborative arrangement. The Compaésty recorded approximately $0.9
million and $1.3 million of capitalized softwarev@#gopment costs for SimVentures during 2013 and226dspectively.

9. CONTENT RIGHTS AND DEFERRED SERVICE CREDITS

During 2012, the Company entered into a renewaergent with a customer in which the Company wasigead continued rights to distribute
and resell courseware owned by the customer. lhamge for the receipt of an exclusive license stritiute and resell this courseware, the
Company has provided, and will continue to provitie, customer with service credits that can be axgtd for future purchases of the
Company’s products and services. The value assignigk content rights and the deferred servicditssavas $500,000, which represents the
estimated fair value of the assets relinquishe@. ddntent rights are classified within other prdmaipenses and other assets, and the deferre
service credits are classified within accrued libs and other long-term liabilities on our conded consolidated balance sheets.

These exchangeable service credits will be issnadally through December 31, 2016, and will expiventy-four months after issuance. Any
unused credits will be forfeited upon expiratioruridg 2012 and 2013, the Company issued exchangeeblice credits of $100,000,
respectively, in accordance with this agreemerd,iambligated to issue remaining service credi$l®0,000 annually through 2016. The
content rights are being amortized on a straigté-basis through December 31, 2016. Revenuesddupts or services provided in exchange
for these service credits will be recognized incadance with the Company’s revenue recognitioncpesi

10. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company provides services to healthcare orgtoirs and other members within the healthcaresimguThese services are primarily
focused on the delivery of workforce developmeiotdoicts and services (HealthStream Workforce Devedopt Solutions, formerly referred to
as HealthStream Learning & Talent Management),elsas survey and research services (HealthStrezsadRch/Patient Experience
Solutions).

The Company measures segment performance basgrkmting income before income taxes and prior écaffocation of certain corporate
overhead expenses, interest income, interest egpand depreciation. The Unallocated componenwb#ioludes corporate functions, such as
accounting, human resources, legal, investor oelafiadministrative, and executive personnel, aégiien, a portion of amortization, and
certain other expenses, which are not currentbcated in measuring segment performance. The foltpis the Company’s business segment
information as of and for the years ended Decer@beP013, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands).

Year ended December 31, 201
Research/Patien

Workforce
Developmen Experience Unallocatec Consolidatec
Revenues, net $ 103,82( $ 28,45 $ — $ 132,27.

Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and

amortization) 39,47¢ 16,127 — 55,60¢
Product developmel 10,26: 1,49t — 11,757
Sales and marketir 18,30: 5,41¢ 33€ 24,05
Other general and administrati 3,78 1,53( 13,02t 18,34:
Depreciation and amortizatic 3,517 1,06¢ 3,27 7,852
Total income from operatior $ 28,48( $ 2,81¢ $ (16,637) $ 14,66¢
*Segment asse $ 60,01: $ 34,72] $117,85: $ 212,59:
Purchases of property and equipm $ 2,59¢ $ 171 $ 1,67 $ 4,44«
Payments associated with capitalized software denetnt $ 3,71 $ 55k $ — $ 4,260
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10. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (continued)

Year ended December 31, 201

Research/Patien
Workforce
Developmen Experience Unallocatec Consolidatec
Revenues, net $ 78,56¢ $ 25,16¢ $ — $ 103,73:
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and
amortization) 28,39( 13,26¢ — 41,65¢
Product developmel 7,04( 1,57C — 8,61(
Sales and marketir 14,08: 5,42( 391 19,89:
Other general and administrati 2,76( 1,33( 9,36% 13,45
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,871 1,17¢ 2,60¢ 6,66
Total income from operatior $ 23,41¢ $ 2,39¢ $ (12,35 $ 13,45¢
*Segment asse $ 46,69: $ 23,97¢ $103,85° $ 174,52¢
Purchases of property and equipm $  1,72¢ $ 12 $ 2,46¢ $  4,31¢
Payments associated with capitalized software
developmen $ 3,53¢ $ 89¢ $ — $ 443t
Year ended December 31, 201
Research/Patien
Workforce
Developmen Experience Unallocatec Consolidatec
Revenues, net $ 58,07¢ $ 23,98¢ $ — $ 82,06¢
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and
amortization) 18,84: 12,22 — 31,06¢
Product developmel 5,907 1,56¢€ — 7,47:
Sales and marketir 10,87: 4,73: 413 16,017
Other general and administrati 2,11¢ 1,632 7,012 10,76(
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,36¢ 1,19¢ 1,85¢ 5,412
Total income from operatior $ 17,97¢ $ 2,63¢ $ (9,279 $ 11,33¢
*Segment asse $ 27,32 $ 26,08¢ $100,82° $ 154,23
Purchases of property and equipm $ 1,57 $ 44 $ 2,49/ $ 411t
Payments associated with capitalized software
developmen $ 572 $ 34E $ — $ 6,068

* Segment assets include accounts and unbilledvades, prepaid royalties, prepaid and other curassets, other assets, capitalized
software development, certain property and equipnzerd intangible assets. Cash and cash equivaadtmarketable securities are not
allocated to individual segments, and are inclugdghin Unallocated. A significant portion of propgmland equipment assets are includec
within Unallocated
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11. INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes is comprised offtiwing (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Current federal $2,47¢ $ 58 $ 165
Current statt 1,44¢ 273% 214
Deferred federe 2,31¢ 4,80¢ 3,72¢
Deferred stat: 191 797 304
Provision for income taxe $6,42¢ $5,93: $4,40¢

A reconciliation of income taxes at the statutagdral income tax rate to the provision for incdmees included in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income is as followsh@usands):

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Federal tax provision at the statutory rate $5,19¢ $4,751 $3,97:
State income tax provision, net of federal ber 89¢ 974 337
Change in state valuation allowar 231 — —
Other 101 207 95
Provision for income taxe $6,42¢ $5,93: $4,40¢

Management periodically assesses the realizabilitts deferred tax assets, and to the extentamatovery is not likely, a valuation allowance
is established to reduce the deferred tax assbetamount estimated to be recoverable. At DeceBibe2013, a valuation allowance of $1.3
million exists, of which $1.1 million is comprised the portion of net operating loss carryforwaattsibutable to the exercises of stock optic
Any future reductions of the valuation allowanceasated with the portion of the deferred tax asseiprised of stock option exercises would
be recognized as an increase to common stock.

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had fedexhktate net operating loss carryforwards of $18I8om and $13.9 million, respectively.
These loss carryforwards will expire in years 2€iréugh 2024. As of December 31, 2013, $1.1 milbbthe net operating loss carryforwards
deferred tax asset is attributable to the exemfistock options, and if realized, the tax benefit be recorded as an increase to common stocl

The Company has research and development tax cardyfforwards of $393,000 that expire in varyimgcaints through 2033. These credits
were recognized in 2013 as a reduction to commmrkss of December 31, 2013, the Company hadredtse minimum tax credit
carryforwards of $592,000 that are available teetffuture regular tax liabilities and they do eppire. Federal income tax payments of
$28,000, $189,000 and $194,000, were made duringehrs ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2@k atevely. State income tax
payments of $343,000, $238,000, and $193,000 wederduring the years ended December 31, 2013, 2082011, respectively.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending lidgifor gross unrecognized tax benefits at Decen®ie2013 and 2012, are as follows (in
thousands):

December 31

2013 12012
Balance at beginning of year $— $—
Additions for tax positions in the current ye _167 —
Balance at end of ye. $167 $—

The components of the income tax liability at Debem31, 2013 and 2012, are as follows (in thougands

December 31

_2013 _2012
Unrecognized tax benefits $167 $—
Accrued interest and penalti 2 —
Balance at end of ye. $16¢ $—

None of the $167,000 of unrecognized tax benefiBezember 31, 2013, if recognized, would affeet@ompan’s effective tax rate.
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11. INCOME TAXES (continued)

The Company is subject to income taxation at ther@ and various state levels. The Company isstibp U.S. federal tax examinations for
tax years 2009 through 2013. Loss carryforwardscaedit carryforwards generated or utilized in peaarlier than 2009 are also subject to
examination and adjustment. The Company has nariadax examinations in process.

Deferred federal and state income taxes reflech#t¢ax effects of temporary differences betwdencarrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounéslder income tax purposes. Significant componehtieferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are as follows (in thousands):

December 31

2013 2012
Deferred tax asset
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 84 $ 57
Accrued liabilities 1,22¢ 465
Tax credits 70z 902
Stock based compensati 96¢€ 65C
Net operating loss carryforwar 1,25¢ 3,48¢
Total deferred tax asse 4,23t 5,557
Less: Valuation allowanc (1,325 (1,099
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowe 2,90¢ 4,464
Deferred tax liabilities
Deductible goodwil 2,02( 1,492
Nondeductible intangible ass¢ 2,671 3,19¢
Prepaid asse 781 53¢
Capitalized software developme 2,91C 2,25:
Deferred revenu — 22C
Depreciatior 341 223
Basis difference on investmer 53z 55¢
Total deferred tax liabilitie 9,26¢ 8,47¢
Net deferred tax liabilitie $(6,35¢) $(4,015)

12. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION
Stock Incentive Plans

The Company’s 2010 Stock Incentive Plan (2010 Pdana)) 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (2000 Plan; colretyi the 2010 Plan and the 2000 Plar
referred to as the Plan) authorize the grant abapt restricted share units (RSU), or other foafhstock based compensation to employees,
officers, directors and others, and such grantgs meispproved by the Compensation Committee oBtieed of Directors. Options granted
under the Plan have terms of no more than ten yed#iscertain restrictions. The Plan allows thenp@nsation Committee of the Board of
Directors to determine the vesting period and patars of each grant. The vesting period of theoogtand RSUs granted has historically
ranged from immediate vesting to annual vestingoupur years, beginning one year after the grate.dAs of December 31, 2013,
approximately 813,000 shares of unissued commark stanained reserved for future stock incentiventgainder the Plan. The Company
issues new shares of common stock when optionsxareised or when RSUs become vested.
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12. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION (continued)
Stock Option Activity

A summary of activity and various other informati@tative to stock options for the year ended Ddmem31, 2013 is presented in the tables
below (in thousands, except exercise price).

Weighted-
Common Average Aggregate
Shares Exercise Pric¢ Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at beginning of period 1,91« $ 4.2¢
Grantec — —
Exercisec (1,079 3.1t
Expired — —
Forfeited 4 6.11
Outstanding at end of peric 837 $ 5.7¢ $ 2251
Exercisable at end of peric 594 $ 5.0¢€ $ 1637t

The aggregate intrinsic value for stock optionthimtable above represents the total differenogder the Company'’s closing stock price on
December 31, 2013 (the last trading day of the)y&fe$32.63 and the option exercise price, muktiglby the number of in-the-money options
as of December 31, 2013. The weighted average némgagontractual term of options outstanding até»aloer 31, 2013 was 3.8 years. Opti
exercisable at December 31, 2013 have a weighteihge remaining contractual term of 3.4 years.

Other information relative to option activity dugithe three years ended December 31, 2013 islag/ff{in thousands, except weighted
average grant date fair value):

2013 2012 2011

Weighted average grant date fair value of stocloaptgranted $ — $ — $ 4.67
Total grant date fair value of stock options ves $ 728 $ 87¢ $ 644
Total intrinsic value of stock options exercis $25,84¢ $4,997 $4,53¢
Cash proceeds from exercise of stock opt $ 3,31¢ $ 822 $1,24:

Restricted Share Unit Activity

A summary of activity relative to RSUs for the yemded December 31, 2013 is follows (in thousaexisept weighted average grant date fair
value):

Number of Weighted-
Average Aggregate

RSU’s Grant Date Fair Value Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at beginning of period 73 $ 23.2%
Grantec 80 22.0z
Vested (16) 23.0i
Forfeited — —
Outstanding at end of peric 137 $ 22.5¢ $ 4,46¢

The aggregate fair value of RSU awards that vest@013, as of the respective vesting dates, wpsapmately $345,000. A portion of RSUs
that vested in 2013 were net-share settled su¢hhit@@Company withheld shares with value equivatierhe employees’ minimum statutory
obligation for the applicable income and other eaypient taxes, and remitted the cash to the ap@tepiaxing authorities. The total shares
withheld for RSUs during 2013 were 2,210, and wareed on the value of the RSUs on their respeetigng dates as determined by the
Company'’s closing stock price. One stock optiorreise was net-share settled during 2013, resuitiig606 shares withheld for settlement of
employee tax obligations. Total payments relate@$&s and stock options for the employees’ taxgaitions to taxing authorities were
approximately $164,000 in 2013, and are reflected financing activity within the Consolidated $taents of Cash Flows. These net-share
settlements had the effect of share repurchaséseb@ompany as they reduced and retired the nuaftsrares that would have otherwise b
issued as a result of the vesting and did not sgmtean expense to the Company.
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12. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

Stock Based Compensation

Total stock based compensation expense recordedddhree years ended December 31, 2013, whigtdsded in our statements of income,
is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011

Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and amatitin) $ 81 $ 45 $ 41
Product developmel 144 13z 17¢
Sales and marketir 17¢% 151 104
Other general and administrati 1,05¢ 807 464
Total stock based compensation expe $1,45¢ $1,13¢ $78€

The Company amortizes the fair value of all stoakdal awards, net of estimated forfeitures, onadgsii-line basis over the requisite service
period, which generally is the vesting period. A®ecember 31, 2013, total unrecognized compensatpense related to non-vested stock
options and RSU’s was approximately $2.5 millioet of estimated forfeitures, with a weighted averagpense recognition period remaining
of 2.3 years. The Company realized approximately $8llion of excess tax benefits during the yeaded December 31, 2013, which was
recorded as an increase to common stock.

Stock based compensation cost for RSU’s is measased on the closing fair market value of the Camyfs stock on the date of grant. Stock
based compensation cost for stock options is ettt the grant date based on the fair value lzaémiusing the Black-Scholes method. The
Company did not grant any stock options during 26M3012. The ranges of assumptions used for datargthe estimated fair value of stock
options during 2011 were as follows:

Risk-freeinterest rate 1.05-2.39%
Expected dividend yiel 0.0%
Expected life (in years 5to 7
Expected forfeiture rat 0-5%
Volatility 50%

Risk-free interest rates based on the U.S. Treasury rate in effect atithe of the option grant having a term equivaterthe expected life of
the option.

Expected dividend yiels zero because the Company has not made any dd/Beyments in its history and does not plan todiaiglends in
the foreseeable future.

Expected lifeis the period of time the option is expected toagmoutstanding, and is based on historical expeeeThe contractual option life
ranges from eight to ten years. The Company estuntite expected life of options granted to membgrsanagement to be five years and
seven years for directors.

Expected forfeiture ratis the estimated percentage of options grantedhtigahot expected to become fully vested. Thisresd# is based on
historical experience, and will be adjusted as s&&/ to match the actual forfeiture experience.

Volatility is the measure of the amount by which the priexpected to fluctuate. The Company estimated Vityaltiased on the actual
historical volatility of the Company’s common stoekid management believes future volatility willdimilar to the Company’s historical
volatility experience.
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

401(k) Plan

The Company has a defined-contributemployee benefit plan (401(k) Plan) incorporatingvsions of Section 401(k) of the Internal Reve
Code. Employees must have attained the age of @bhave completed thirty days of service to be klggto participate in the 401(k) Plan.
Under the provisions of the 401(k) Plan, a plan ie@nmay make contributions, on a tax-deferred basisto exceed 20% of compensation,
subject to IRS limitations. The Company has notjgled matching contributions through December 31,32

14. DEBT
At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company hachbalitstanding.

Revolving Credit Facility

The Company maintains a Loan Agreement (the “RenglCredit Facility”) with SunTrust Bank (“SunTrustn the aggregate principal
amount of $20.0 million, which matures on July 2@14. The obligations under the revolving crediilfey are guaranteed by each of the
Company’s subsidiaries. The Company’s borrowingteuathe revolving credit facility bear interestla 30Day LIBOR Rate plus a margin
either 175 or 200 basis points determined in a@wrd with a pricing grid. Principal is payable il bn the maturity date. The Company is
required to pay a commitment fee of 25 basis pgietsannum of the average daily unused portioh@févolving credit facility.

The purpose of the revolving credit facility is fpeneral working capital needs, permitted acquoisgti(as defined in the Loan Agreement), anc
for stock repurchase and/or redemption transactimatsthe Company may authorize.

The revolving credit facility contains certain coeats that, among other things, restrict additioméébtedness, liens and encumbrances,
changes to the character of the Company’s busiaegsisitions, asset dispositions, mergers andatiolasions, sale or discount of receivables,
creation or acquisitions of additional subsidiaresd other matters customarily restricted in sagteements.
In addition, the revolving credit facility requirtise Company to meet certain financial tests, iiclg, without limitation:

e amaximum total leverage ratio (consolidated debgolidated EBITDA) of 2.0 to 1.(

+ funded debt to total capitalization may not excé@®o; anc

» tangible net worth may not be less than $:

As of December 31, 2013, the Company believes & waompliance with all covenants. There were alatces outstanding on the revolving
credit facility as of December 31, 2013.

15. LEASES

The Company has non-cancellable operating leagasily for office space and office equipment. Soeese agreements contain provisions
for escalating rent payments over the initial teohthe lease. The Company accounts for theseddaseecognizing rent expense on a
straight-line basis and adjusting the deferred expense liability for the difference between ttraight-line rent expense and the amount of
rent paid. The Company also leases certain officépenent under operating leases. Total rent expender all operating leases was
approximately $2.4 million, $2.2 million, and $Inflllion, for the years ended December 31, 201322@hd 2011, respectively.

Future rental payment commitments at December @13 2nder non-cancelable operating leases, witlalitérms of one year or more, are as
follows (in thousands):

2014 $2,66¢
2015 2,06z
2016 1,35¢
2017 44¢
2018 59
Thereaftel —

Total minimum lease paymer $6,591
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16. LITIGATION

In the ordinary course of business, the Compaffipia time to time involved in various pending legations. The litigation process is
inherently uncertain and it is possible that tteohetion of such matters might have a material esbreffect upon the financial condition and/or
results of operations of the Company. Howeverhadpinion of the Company’s management, mattergntly pending or threatened against
the Company are not expected to have a materiarae\effect on the financial position or resultepérations of the Company.

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On March 3, 2014, the Company acquired all of theksof Health Care Compliance Strategies, Inc. @$La Jericho, New York based
company that specializes in healthcare compliankéisn and services. The Company acquired HCOS8rther advance its suite of workforce
development solutions, including its offering ohgaliance solutions. The consideration paid for HQ©GS8sisted of approximately $13.0
million in cash, subject to a post-closing workeapital adjustment, and 81,614 shares of our constamk. The Company may make
additional payments of up to $750,000, continggruruachievement of certain performance milestonss-@osing.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

HealthStream’s chief executive officer and printifir@ancial officer have reviewed and evaluatedéffectiveness of the Compasydisclosur
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 18a)Hhd 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Secuiti@hange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange
Act”)) as of December 31, 2013. Based on that etadn, the chief executive officer and principalancial officer have concluded that
HealthStream’s disclosure controls and procedurss wffective to ensure that the information rezpito be disclosed by the Company in the
reports the Company files or submits under the Brgk Act is recorded, processed, summarized adtegpwithin the time periods specified
in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rulesfarms, and the information required to be disetbin the reports the Company files or
submits under the Exchange Act was accumulated@amanunicated to the Company’s management, incluitngrincipal executive and
principal financial officer, or persons performigignilar functions, as appropriate to allow timebcitsions regarding required disclosure.

Management’'s Annual Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finaha@orting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act, and for assgshe effectiveness of internal control oveafinial reporting. The Company’s internal
control over financial reporting is designed toypde reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilifynancial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atauoce with GAAP. The Company’s internal control ofileancial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to thexteaance of records that, in reasonable detailjrately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) ipereasonable assurance that transactions aneleecas necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with GAAP, drad teceipts and expenditures of the Company ang lmeade only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of th@@any; and (3) provide reasonable assurance lieggrtevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition ef @ompany’s assets that could have a materialteifethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegibecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Ceiapaternal control over financial reporting as@écember 31, 2013. In making this
assessment, management used the criteria sebfottle Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission (COSO) in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Managemeagsessment included an evaluation of the designrafternal control over financial
reporting and testing of the operational effectesnof our internal control over financial repagtiManagement believes that, as of
December 31, 2013, the Company’s internal contvel dinancial reporting was effective based on ¢hosteria. The Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm, Ernst & YoungR,Lhas issued an audit report on the Company’siateontrol over financial reporting,
which appears in Item 8 of this Annual Report omnfrd.0-K.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in HealthStream’s internatrabover financial reporting that occurred durthg fourth quarter of 2013 that have
materially affected, or that are reasonably likelynaterially affect, HealthStream’s internal cohtver financial reporting.

ltem 9B.  Other Information
None.
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PART IlI

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govere

Information as to directors of the Company and omaf®e governance is incorporated by reference framnformation contained in our 2014
proxy statement for the 2014 Annual Meeting of 8hatders (2014 Proxy Statement) that we will fil&hwvihe Securities and Exchange

Commission within 120 days of the end of the figezdr to which this report relates. Pursuant toeearinstruction G(3), certain information
concerning executive officers of the Company iduded in Part | of this Form 10-K, under the capti&xecutive Officers of the Registrant.”

ltem 11.  Executive Compensatio
Incorporated by reference from the information eamed in the Company’s 2014 Proxy Statement.

ltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners alanagement and Related Stockholder Mattt
Incorporated by reference from the information edmed in the Company’s 2014 Proxy Statement.

Iltem 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, addector Independenct
Incorporated by reference from the information eamed in the Company’s 2014 Proxy Statement.

Iltem 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Service
Incorporated by reference from the information eamed in the Company’s 2014 Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule
(2)(2) Financial Statements
Reference is made to the financial statementsdeciun Item 8 to this Report on Form 10-K.
(2)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted because they are notcaiphé or the required information is shown in @ensolidated Financial Statements ol
the notes thereto.

(a)(3) Exhibits

Number Description

2.1 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 2&, 230and among HealthStream, Inc., Mel B. Thompswh Data
Management & Research, Ir

2.2@ Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 127, 230and among HealthStream, Inc., The Jacksoarxgtion, Research
Consultants, Inc., David Jackson and the Jacksamit@hle Remainder Tru

3.1* Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Charter oftH8&akam, Inc

3.2* Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of HealthStréam

4.1* Form of certificate representing the common stockpar value per share, of HealthStream,

4.2* Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1 and

10.17* 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of Apri] 2000

10.2710) 2010 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of May 2710

10.3"* Form of Indemnification Agreeme

10.47Q) Executive Employment Agreement, dated July 21, 20688veen HealthStream, Inc. and Robert A. Fris

10.5"@® Form of HealthStream, Inc. N-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Employe

10.6"@* Form of HealthStream, Inc. Incentive Stock Opticgrédement (Employee

10.7"@® Form of HealthStream, Inc. N-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Directo

10.8"®) Form of HealthStream, Inc. Restricted Share Uniteggnent (Officers

10.9"G) Form of HealthStream, Inc. Restricted Share Uniteggnent (No-Employee Director

10.106 Loan Agreement dated July 21, 2006 between Heaéh®8t, Inc. and SunTrust Ba

10.11™ First Amendment to Loan Agreement dated Februar®@67 between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust |

10.12® Second Amendment to Loan Agreement dated July @37 Between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust

10.13® Third Amendment to Loan Agreement dated July 1D920etween HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust E

10.1401 Fourth Amendment to Loan Agreement dated Marct28Q;1 between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust |

10.1512 Fifth Amendment to Loan Agreement dated July 19,2Between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust E

10.16" Summary of Director and Executive Officer Compeiuse

21.1 Subsidiaries of HealthStream, It

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursiiao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

101.1 INS XBRL Instance Documer

101.1 SCt XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schen

101.1 CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkba
101.1 DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkba:



101.1 LAE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkba
101.1 PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkb.

* Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Registration Statement on Forr-1, as amended (Reg. No. -88939).
A Management contract or compensatory plan or arraegt

(1) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Form-K, dated March 29, 200!

(2) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Form-K, dated March 12, 200

3) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated July 25, 200!

(4) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated June 1, 201

(5) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on Quarterly Report on Form -Q, dated March 31, 201

(6) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Forr-K, dated July 25, 200t

@) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Forrr-K, dated February 20, 200

(8) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Forr-K, dated July 24, 200°

9 Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Forr-K, dated July 17, 200¢

(10) Incorporated by reference to Appendix B of the Cany's Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the SECAypril 29, 2010.
(11) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated March 30, 201.

(12) Incorporated by reference from exhibit field on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated July 20, 201:
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized on this% day of March, 2014.

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

By: /s/ ROBERTA. FRIsT, JR.

Robert A. Frist, Jr.
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed &ydhowing persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the datéisated:

Signature Title(s) Date
/ s/ RoOBERTA. FRIsT, JR. President, Chief Executive Officer and March 4, 2014
Robert A. Frist, Jr Chairman (Principal Executive Officer)
/ s/ GERARDM. H AYDEN, JR. Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President March 4, 2014
Gerard M. Hayden, J (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/ s/ T HoMPSOND ENT Director March 4, 2014
Thompson Den
/ s/ FRANK G ORDON Director March 4, 2014
Frank Gordor
/ s/ C. MARTIN H ARRIS Director March 4, 2014
C. Martin Harris
/ s/ JEFFREYL. M CcL AREN Director March 4, 2014
Jeffrey L. McLarer
/ s/ D ALE POLLEY Director March 4, 2014
Dale Polley
/ s/ L INDA R EBROVICK Director March 4, 2014
Linda Rebrovick
/ s/ M ICHAEL S HMERLING Director March 4, 2014
Michael Shmerling
/ s/ W ILLIAM STEAD Director March 4, 2014
William Stead
/ s/ D EBORAHT AYLOR T ATE Director March 4, 2014

Deborah Taylor Tat
58



Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number

2.1m
2.2@

3.1*

3.2%

4.1*

4.2*
10.1~*
10.2700)
10.3™*
10.47Q)
10.5M@
10.6"@
10.7"@
10.87®)
10.97G)
10.10®
10.11™
10.12®
10.13®
10.1401
10.1502
10.16"
211

23.1

311

31.2

32.1

32.2
101.1 INS
101.1 SCt
101.1 CAL
101.1 DEF
101.1 LAE
101.1 PRE

*
AN

(1)
(2)
(3)

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Description

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 2&, 230and among HealthStream, Inc., Mel B. Thomswh Data
Management & Research, Ir

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 17, 230and among HealthStream, Inc., The Jacksoartirgtion,
Research Consultants, Inc., David Jackson andaitlesdn Charitable Remainder Tr

Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Charter oftH8akam, Inc

Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of HealthStréam

Form of certificate representing the common stockpar value per share, of HealthStream,

Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1 and

2000 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of Apri| 2000

2010 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of May 2710

Form of Indemnification Agreeme

Executive Employment Agreement, dated July 21, 20688veen HealthStream, Inc. and Robert A. Fris
Form of HealthStream, Inc. N-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Employe

Form of HealthStream, Inc. Incentive Stock Opticgrédement (Employee

Form of HealthStream, Inc. N-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Directo

Form of HealthStream, Inc. Restricted Share Uniteggnent (Officers

Form of HealthStream, Inc. Restricted Share Uniteggnent (No-Employee Director

Loan Agreement dated July 21, 2006 between HeaéthBt, Inc. and SunTrust Ba

First Amendment to Loan Agreement dated Februan2@87 between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust |
Second Amendment to Loan Agreement dated July @37 Between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust
Third Amendment to Loan Agreement dated July 1D920etween HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust E
Fourth Amendment to Loan Agreement dated Marct28Q1 between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust |
Fifth Amendment to Loan Agreement dated July 19, 2Between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust E
Summary of Director and Executive Officer Compeiuse

Subsidiaries of HealthStream, It

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursiiao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z
XBRL Instance Documer

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schen

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkba

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbat

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkba

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkb.

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Registration Statement on Fori-1, as amended (Reg. No. :-88939).
Management contract or compensatory plan or arraagt

Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated March 29, 200!
Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated March 12, 200
Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated July 25, 200!



(4) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated June 1, 201

(5) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on Quarterly Report on Form -Q, dated March 31, 201

(6) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated July 25, 200t

@) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated February 20, 200

(8) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated July 24, 200°

9 Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated July 17, 200!

(10) Incorporated by reference to Appendix B of the Cany's Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the SECAyoril 29, 2010.
(11) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated March 30, 201

(12) Incorporated by reference from exhibit field on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated July 20, 201.



EXHIBIT 10.1€

HealthStream, Inc. (the “Company”)
Summary of Director and Executive Officer Compensdbn

I. Director Compensation. Directors who are employees of the Company daeusive additional compensation for serving asalars of the
Company. The following table sets forth currenesabf cash compensation for the Company’s non-eyepldirectors.

Retainers and Fee: 2014

Annual Retainer fee $4,00(
Board meeting fe $1,00(
Committee chair meeting fe $1,00(
Committee member meeting f $ 50C

In addition to the cash compensation set forth abesch non-employee director is eligible to ree@iwnondiscretionary annual grant of
restricted share units for conversion to sharde@fCompany’s common stock. The restricted shaits are granted annually and vest ratably
over a three year period.

II. Executive Officer Compensation The following table sets forth the current baslases and fiscal 2013 performance bonuses prdtiae
our executive officers, including the individual®avthe Company expects to be its Named Executifiegd$ for 2014.

Executive Officer Current Base Salany Fiscal 2013 Bonus Amour
Robert A. Frist, Jr. $ 269,85( $ 35,20¢
J. Edward Pearsc $ 256,20( $ 33,42¢
Arthur E. Newmar $ 245,70( $ 32,05¢
Gerard M. Hayden, J $ 241,50( $ 31,51(
Jeffrey S. Doste $ 241,50( $ 31,51(
Michael Sous: $ 202,12! $ 8,75(

[ll. Additional Information . The foregoing information is summary in natureldfional information regarding Director and Nantedecutive
Officer compensation will be contained in the Compga 2014 Proxy Statement.



SUBSIDIARIES OF HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

Names Under Which We Do Busine¢
Data Management & Research, Inc.

The Jackson Organization, Research Consultants
Decision Critical, Inc

Sy.Med Development, Ini

Health Care Compliance Strategies, |
HealthStream Acquisition I, In

HealthStream Acquisition 11, In¢

EXHIBIT 21.1

State or Other Jurisdiction of
Incorporation or
Organizatior

Tennesse
Maryland
Texas
Tennesse
New York
Tennesse

Tennesse



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference irféHewing Registration Statements:
(1) Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33-167241) pertaining to the 2010 Stock Incentive RiaHealthStream, Inc

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-374#0)aining to the 1994 Employee Stock Option P20 Stock Incentive Plan
and Employee Stock Purchase Plan of HealthStrazom

(3) Registration Statement (Forn-3 No. 33:-175863) of HealthStream, In

of our reports dated March 4, 2014, with respethéoconsolidated financial statements of Heal#8ir, Inc., and the effectiveness of internal

control over financial reporting of HealthStreamc.| included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K)HéalthStream, Inc. for the year ended
December 31, 2013.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Nashville, Tennesse
March 4, 2014



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Robert A. Frist, Jr., certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of HealthStream, Inc
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or donfitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, niaadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep
4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrifie period in which this report is being prepared
b) Designed such internal control over financigloiting, or caused such internal control over fahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;
c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registraisslosure controls and procedures and presentdsineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirttgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fofigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan
5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):
a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the riegig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.
Date: March 4, 2014 /s/ ROBERTA. FRIST, JR.

Robert A. Frist, Jr
Chief Executive Office



EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Gerard M. Hayden, Jr., certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of HealthStream, Inc
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or donfitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, niaadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep
4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrifie period in which this report is being prepared
b) Designed such internal control over financigloiting, or caused such internal control over fahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;
c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registraisslosure controls and procedures and presentdsineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirttgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fofigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan
5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):
a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the riegig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.
Date: March 4, 2014 /s| GERARDM. H AYDEN, JR.

Gerard M. Hayden, Jr.
Chief Financial Office



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HealthSinednc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeadeng December 31, 2013, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the “Report”), Robert A. Frist, Jrhi€f Executive Officer of the Company
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopteguant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2@@&t;

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of
the Company

/s/ ROBERTA. FRIST, JR.
Robert A. Frist, Jr.
Chief Executive Officer
March 4, 201«




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HealthSinednc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeadeng December 31, 2013, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the “Report"zerard M. Hayden, Jr., Chief Financial Officer loé tCompan
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopteduant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20@:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of
the Company

/s/ GERARDM. H AYDEN, JR.
Gerard M. Hayden, Jr.
Chief Financial Officer
March 4, 201«




